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BOARD OF POLICE COMISSIONERS 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 

EVA GARZA DEWAELSCHE, Chairperson, At-Large 

DARRYL WOODS, Vice Chair, At-Large 

HENRIETTA IVEY, Commissioner, District 1 

LAVISH WILLIAMS, Commissioner, District 2 

DARIOUS MORRIS, Commissioner, District 3 

SCOTT BOMAN, Commissioner, District 4 

BEVERLY WATTS, Commissioner, District 5 

LISA CARTER, Commissioner, District 6 

VICTORIA CAMILLE, Commissioner, District 7 

ALSO PRESENT: 

LYDIA GARNIER, Board Secretary 

JONYA UNDERWOOD, Administrative Specialist 

TODD BETTISON, City of Detroit Police Chief 

MEETING HELD ON MAY 7, 2026 

A public hearing of the City of Detroit Board of Police 

Commissioners, at the Detroit Public Safety Headquarters, 

located at 1301 3rd Avenue, Detroit, Michigan 48226, on 

Thursday, May 7th, 2026, commencing at 3:00 p.m., before 

Megan M. Harder, CER-15895. 



Call to Order 

Invocation 

Introduction of Commissioners 

Approval of the May 7, 2026, Agenda 

Approval of the April 30, 2026, Minutes 

Introduction of BOPC Staff 

Approval of the Closed Session Minutes 

BOPC Officers' Report 

Chief of Police Report 

Report from Board Secretary Lydia Garnier 

New Business 

Adjournment 
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Detroit, Michigan 

Thursday, May 7, 2026 - 3:00 p.m. 

* * * 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Good afternoon, 

everyone. Thank you for being here today. Today's May 

7th, and it is our Board of Police Commissioners meeting. 

I'd like to call to order the meeting, and we have the 

invocation that will be given by Chaplain Glenn Hodges, 

and I understand he's here in person? Yes. Thank you. 

CHAPLAIN HODGES: Thank you. May now bow our 

heads. Oh, Lord. Our Lord. How excellent is thy name in 

all the earth. The heaven declared the glory of, the 

glory of thee, and the firmament shore, Thy handiwork. 

Day unto day utter speech. And night unto 

night, reveal knowledge. There is no speech. Nor a 

language where thy voice is not heard. Most gracious and 

eternal God, First Lord, we've come before you, with a 

thankful heart. We thank you for allowing us to gather 

together, once again. To discuss the safety, well-being, 

and the future of our community. 

We thank you for every Board Commissioner who 

has committed themselves to serve and positive change 

within the city of Detroit. We thank you for their 

diversity, their many years of life experiences, their 

education, achievements, and their willingness to serve 
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this great city. Yet above all these things. Thank you. 

That they continue to depend upon you for your wisdom, 

discernment, and guidance as they make decisions affecting 

the lives of many. Lord, we thank you for every member of 

the community who has joined this meeting today. For 

every member of the community who has joined this meeting 

today. 

We pray that concerns will be heard, questions 

will be answered, and solutions found in the spirit of 

unity and fairness and respect. We lift up our police 

officers before you as they go into the community each day 

to protect and serve. Cover them with your divine 

protection, grant them wisdom in their difficult 

situations, compassion in their interactions, and courage 

in moments of danger and integrity in all they do. 

Bringing them safely home to their families at the end of 

each shift. 

We also pray for every home represented in this 

place today. Let them continue to be homes filled with 

love, homes filled with peace, but most of all, homes 

filled with your spirit. Guide this meeting, Lord. 

Let all that is said and done be pleasing in your sight 

and beneficial to the people of the City of Detroit. 

In the name of Jesus, we pray. Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Amen. Thank you. 
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Thank you, Chaplain. And now, if we could please have an 

introduction of commissioners by roll call. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Dewaelsche. 

MS. DEWAELSCHE: Present. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Boman. 

MR. BOMAN: Present. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Camille. 

MS. CAMILLE: Present. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Carter. 

MS. CARTER: Here. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Ivey. 

MS. IVEY: Present. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Jones. 

MR. JONES: Present. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Morris. 

MR. MORRIS: Here. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Watts. 

MS. WATTS: Here. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Williams. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Present. 

MS. GARNIER: Nine present, Madam Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. At this 

time, we have the agenda of May 7th, today's agenda. 

Is there a motion to approve? 

MR. JONES: So moved, Madam Chair. 
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CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: The motion has been 

made by Commissioner Jones. 

MS. IVEY: Support. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Supported by 

Commissioner Ivey. Is there a discussion? 

MR. BOMAN: I made a motion to amend. I would 

like to have a resolution added under new business that I 

sent out in an email regarding the contract negotiations. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Did you receive the 

email from -- I'm sorry, Corporation Counsel? 

MR. BOMAN: No but --

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: He's requesting that we 

wait one week so that legal can take a look at that 

resolution. 

MR. BOMAN: I --

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. If you want to 

keep the motion, that's fine, we'll vote on it. 

Just letting you know, an email came out to all of us. 

MR. BOMAN: I don't know if I can get a read of 

the room as to whether or not waiting a week would have an 

effect on a vote. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: It would allow us to --

MR. BOMAN: Okay. If waiting a week has a 

possibility of making things better, I'll wait a week. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Well, it will allow us 
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to get legal advice. That's what it will do. All right. 

So, you're withdrawing your motion, then? 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Since the motion was not 

seconded or stated by the chair, the maker of the motion 

can withdraw it without any other approval. 

MR. BOMAN: Okay. Yeah, I don't need a second, 

then. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: All right. Thank you. 

So, it's been moved and seconded. Any further discussion 

on the agenda? Hearing none. All those in favor indicate 

by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? 

The motion carries. 

We have minutes from April 30th. Is there a 

motion to approve those minutes? 

MR. JONES: So moved, Madam Chair. 

MS. WATTS: Supported. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: It's been moved by 

Commissioner Jones, supported by Commissioner Watts. 

Any discussion? 

All in favor indicate by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? 

Motion carries. 
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At this time, could we, Madam Secretary, have 

the introduction of BOPC staff, Chief of Police, elected 

officials, representatives, and community leaders? 

MS. GARNIER: Madam Chair, through the Chair, I 

apologize. Sorry, we've had some additions in the last 

few seconds. Present today are as follows, Jonya 

Underwood, Teresa Blossom (phonetic), Dior Mathis 

(phonetic), Candace Hayes (phonetic), Armani Arnold 

(phonetic), Armecio Joshua (phonetic), Mary Barber 

(phonetic), Felicia Tyson (phonetic), Drew Freese 

(phonetic), Chief Investigator Jerome Warfield, Corporate 

Counsel expected, Dr. Jackson, Parliamentarian. 

Interpreters for the day are Angelique Taylor (phonetic) 

and Stephanie Beattie (phonetic). 

Hanson Court Reporting is here today as court 

reporter. Audio Sergeant Enrique Jackson, Media Services 

Jason Grant. Our own Chief of Police, Todd A. Bettison, 

is present. Others registered at this time are as 

follows. On Zoom is Marie Overall, who's Administrative 

Assistant to State Representative Tyrone Carter and Vice 

President of 4th Precinct Community Relations Committee. 

Mark Young, Lieutenant Emergence Association, 

DPOA Ron Thomas, Vice President. Also, former 2nd 

Precinct President Fridja Butler (phonetic), Community 

Relations Commission. Also, Nicole Fisher of 4th Precinct 
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Community Relations. We also have JG Love representing 

City Council member Renata Miller's office, former Police 

Commissioners William Davis and Ricardo Moore are both on 

Zoom. And those are the individuals registered at this 

time, Madam Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. Thank you, 

Madam Secretary. Under my report, we have a resolution 

honoring former Police Commissioner Sharon Blaine Bernard, 

Attorney, and this is posthumously, and I've asked 

Commissioner Jones to please read that resolution. 

MR. JONES: Thank you, Madam Chair. 

As mentioned, this is a resolution honoring former Police 

Commissioner Sharon Elaine Bernard, Esquire posthumously. 

Whereas Sharon Elaine Bernard made a vital impact to the 

communities she served in every role she held in her 

lifetime, including the pivotal role of a Detroit Police 

Commissioner. With a reputation for thorough preparation 

and integrity, she demonstrated leadership by example and 

received numerous awards for her decades of leadership and 

commitment. And whereas, a native Detroiter, she moved to 

Arkansas after marriage where she obtained her law degree 

from the University of Arkansas and became the first black 

woman admitted to the State Bar of Arkansas. 

Then known as Sharon Bernard Miller, she became 

a renowned civil rights activist and served as an Arkansas 
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delegate to the White House Conference on Aging, as well 

as on the Arkansas Governor's Commission on the Status of 

Women. And whereas, upon her return to Detroit, she began 

a distinguished 30-year career at Michigan National Bank. 

In 1979, Mayor Coleman A. Young appointed her to the Board 

of Police Commissioners. She served with distinction and 

became Board Chairperson during a critical period of 

reforms for the Police Department. And whereas, former 

Police Commissioner Bernard served on a myriad of 

professional and civic organizations, often as Chairperson 

of the Board of Directors. She served as Chairwoman of 

the Detroit Urban League and worked tirelessly as a 

friend, fundraiser and mentor for the benefit of numerous 

organizations. 

Former Commissioner Bernard leaves behind an 

outstanding legacy of unwavering commitment to issues 

affecting civil rights, children and women. She also 

holds a unique place in city history, along with former 

District 2 Police Commissioner Linda Bernard for siblings 

who served on the board. And whereas the board, along 

with the community, extends its sincerest condolences to 

the family and friends of former Police Commissioner 

Sharon Bernard, as her life is celebrated at the Cathedral 

of the Most Blessed Sacrament on Friday, May the 8th, 

2026. 
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Therefore, be it resolved that the Detroit Board 

of Police Commissioners speaking on behalf of the citizens 

of the great city of Detroit, hereby awards this 

resolution posthumously to former Police Commissioner 

Sharon Elaine Bernard for her dedication to both the 

public and private sectors. Her unwavering commitment to 

the city of Detroit and its citizens merits our highest 

regard. Madam Chairman, I'd like to move that we accept 

this resolution honoring former Police Commissioner Sharon 

Elaine Bernard. 

MR. BOMAN: I'll second. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. It's been 

moved by Commissioner Jones, seconded by Commissioner 

Boman. 

Is there any discussion? 

All in favor indicate by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? The motion 

carries. Thank you kindly. 

And I just want to mention, for those who may 

not know. Ms. Bernard is the sister of Linda Bernard who 

was just recently on our board as Commissioner as well. 

So, I just want to make that point. And thank you. 

At this time, we'll have the Chief's report, Chief 

Bettison. 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · 

· · · · 

· · · · 

· · ·

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · 

· ·

· · · · 

· ·

· · · · · · ·

· · · 

· · · 

· · · 

· ·

· ·

· · · · · · ·

· ·

· ·

· · · 

· · · · · · · · 

· ·

· · · 

MR. BETTISON: Good afternoon, Board. 

THE BOARD: Good afternoon. 

MR. BETTISON: I'll start with our crime 

statistical report. And so, in the category of homicides, 

we're down 8 percent. Definitely fighting last year's 

numbers. We had historic lows, of course, then we're down 

a few more. 

So, this year we're at 45. Last year we were at 

49. The category of non-fatal shootings, we have 96. 

That's where a person was shot and didn't succumb to their 

injuries. Last year we had 113. So that's a 15 percent 

reduction. 

Robberies we are even zero percent change. 

So, 282, last year was 282. And the category of 

carjackings zero percent change. 23 this year, last year, 

at the same time, it was 23. Last year, we've been, we 

finished a year with 77, which was still historic lows in 

the category of carjackings. 

And so, the men and women of the DPD continue to 

work very, very hard and diligently in preventing, 

deterring, apprehending, enforcing laws of the city of 

Detroit. In the categories of some of the cases closed. 

A homicide case on April 14th. Officers from 

the 11th Precinct were dispatched to a shooting at the 

corner of Remington Avenue and Dequindre. Upon arrival, 
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officers located victim suffered from multiple gunshot 

wounds. The victim was transported to the local hospital 

where he succumbed to his injuries. On the same day, 

officers located camera footage that captured the incident 

and the vehicle involved. On April 24th, suspects Deandre 

Brown (phonetic) was arrested and on April 27th, the 

second suspect, Dewan Freeman (phonetic), was arrested. 

Both men have been charged with murder in the first 

degree. 

As I say, the homicide division is doing a 

phenomenal job when it comes to identifying and holding 

individuals responsible for committing the worst of the 

worst crimes. On April 28th, members of the Detroit 

Police Department were dispatched to a felonious assault 

at a liquor store, in the 19500 block of Joy Road. Upon 

arrivals, they observed a victim at the location 

unresponsive with apparent stab wounds. The victim was 

conveyed to a local hospital where he succumbed to his 

injuries. Officers located the video footage captured the 

incident. 

It was a verbal altercation. Basically, the man 

was stabbed to death after he attempted to talk to a young 

lady's girlfriend. Very heinous and brutal. Members of 

the DPD ultimately executed multiple search warrants 

throughout the city where they were able to contact 
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witnesses who were present. And on April 29th, the 

defendant identified as Vaquita Priest Reed (phonetic) 

turned herself in at the Detroit Public Safety 

Headquarters. A warrant was submitted to the Wayne 

Prosecutor's Office. 

In the category of traffic crimes, and we're 

still doing our traffic enforcement. And so, on April 

26th to May 2nd, the traffic enforcement unit conducted 

operations in the 2nd Precinct, 11 Precinct, officers made 

403 traffic stops, issued 972 tickets for moving 

violations and 122 tickets for speeding. Community 

updates. Yesterday I did my Walk a Mile Wednesday. 

Commissioner Woods was there. Commissioner Jones, I 

believe I saw you there. It was an amazing event. 

We had approximately 300 people out. It was in 

the 12th Precinct. The 12th Precinct definitely got the 

crowd out as well as chief neighborhood liaison. And I 

will tell you, everybody, young, seasoned, because I will 

not say old. It was just a crosswalk of everyone. They 

had the marching band out and food, dancing, DJ and the 

special guest appearance, I had teased it on the media 

that we were going to have a special guest appearance. 

That was Madam Mayor Sheffield. She came out and we 

walked a mile and just engaged and it was, it just felt 

good. 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

· · · · · · · ·

· · · · 

· · · · 

· · · · 

· · ·

· · · · 

· · ·

· · · · 

· · ·

· · · · · · ·

· · · 

· ·

· · · · 

· ·

· · · 

· ·

· · · · · · ·

· ·

· · · 

· ·

· ·

· ·

· · · 

· · · 

· ·

The weather was there for us and it just 

exceeded my expectations. So, we'll be doing it every 

other week. I invite the commissioners, the community 

out, as well. And it just really shows the overall 

support that this community has for the Detroit Police 

Department and how much we care. And it just allows us to 

continue to engage on deeper levels and in their 

neighborhood on their block in their street. So, nothing 

gives me more joy than that. 

Today we had our National Day of Prayer, and we 

did it right outside in the corridor. And so, the Detroit 

chaplains put that together and it was just amazing as 

well. And then next week will be Police Week. But before 

Police Week, we have three officers that will be going up 

on the wall in DC. But today we unveiled them and placed 

them on the wall right outside of here. 

And so those officers Sergeant Shannon Wright 

(phonetic), Corporal Rhonda Morris (phonetic) and police 

officer Kelvin Patrick (phonetic). And so, next week, 

I'll be in Washington DC, along with some other members of 

the Detroit Police Department to honor our fallen members. 

And it's another thing that I'm very, very happy to 

report. This past Sunday, at Cleary University, and we 

had 100 plus members, I believe, 119 to be exact. Members 

of the Detroit Police Department that obtained their, 
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either, their bachelor's and or master's degree from 

Cleary University. It was a spectacular event. 

And then we have a member in here who achieved 

just something on an even higher level. And so, you all 

have to refer to him as something a little bit different. 

You all know him as Mark Young, Lieutenant Mark Young, the 

President of the Lieutenants and Sergeants Association. 

But he was awarded his honorary doctorate degree. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes. Congratulations. 

MR. BETTISON: And, at this time, this concludes 

my chief's report. And based off the agenda, you see that 

I am making recommendations for executive appointments. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Before you go into 

that, can I just acknowledge that we had a couple of 

people join us. Our Vice Chair Woods joined us and also, 

Corporation Counsel Conrad Mallett has joined us. 

Thank you. Continue. 

MR. BETTISON: So, as the summer months approach 

and --

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: I've got some 

commissioners who want to ask questions about your report. 

So, let's do it before you do the list of promotions. 

Go ahead, Commissioner Watts. 

MS. WATTS: Hi, how are you? 

MR. BETTISON: Excellent. 
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MS. WATTS: Hi, Chief. Thank you so much for 

your report. And also, we're looking forward to that Walk 

a Mile coming to District 5. 

MR. BETTISON: Absolutely. 

MS. WATTS: I just have a quick question because 

I received a couple of inquiries, and this goes to maybe 

some loitering around the gas stations and the liquor 

stores because we know spring is here. Is there any kind 

of engagement or communication that you have with the 

owners or your deputy chiefs, around a strategy, that way 

residents feel, you know, not uneasy walking into the 

grocery stores or, not grocery stores, but the gas 

stations and the liquor store. So that was the question. 

MR. BETTISON: Yeah, that is a excellent 

question. And one of the things that I definitely plan on 

doing with my media relations team is picking tough topics 

like that to be able to educate the community as to how 

they can help us as well. But I'm going to have to bounce 

this ball over to Corp Counsel to answer part of the 

question because the owner of the gas station or whether 

it's a liquor store, a business establishment, when the 

individual is loitering on their property, they have to 

actually be the complainant. And they're the ones, we can 

write the ticket, but they'll have to show up to court. 

And so, many of times, they don't want to actually go 
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through with that step of it. 

And so, working very closely with them to be 

able to identify, deter, and take it to the next level. 

That's something that we could definitely work on. 

We have met with various business locations where that is 

a concern in the past, but I would love to revisit that 

and continue to work on being able to address that problem 

because we know that that can be problematic. So, Corp 

Counsel, did I miss anything? 

MR. MALLETT: No, sir. 

MS. WATTS: Okay. Yeah. Thank you. And 

anything that I particularly can do as a commissioner, 

please let me know on any constituent. I know in District 

5 would love to be involved with that engagement because, 

as you know, some of the owners, especially when you get 

to some of the establishments, they'll say, hey, if you're 

on this side of the sidewalk is no longer my problem or 

property is the responsibility of the city. But anything 

that I can do in District 5, please let me know. 

MR. BETTISON: Would love to engage with you and 

through the Chair, we found that some owners of the 

establishment actually don't have a problem with the 

individuals being there and depending on what's going on 

and some of them have paid some. So, it's just, we're 

going to have to take it establishment by establishment. 
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So, if you get me the problematic locations that you're 

concerned of, we can take a strategic approach on each one 

of them. 

MS. WATTS: Okay. That's all I have. 

But sometimes, on that comment too, some people don't have 

a problem with people standing out there when they're 

protected behind a plexiglass. Thank you, Madam Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Any other questions for the chief? 

MS. CAMILLE: Madam Chair? 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes, Commissioner 

Camille. 

MS. CAMILLE: Thank you. Thank you, Chief, for 

so much for your report and congratulations to your 

members that are working to further their education. 

That's definitely worthy efforts. So, Chief, we've talked 

about this before. I continue to get concerns from 

residents regarding the experience they're having when 

calling the 911 center. We've heard some here. I've seen 

them in some of the citizen complaints that I've been 

reviewing, as well as in some of the block club meetings 

that I've been attending. 

And some time ago, I requested a copy of the 

curriculum, which I did receive an outline. I was looking 

for more detail, like, the Power Point presentations, 
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talking points for the instructors and things like that. 

So, if I could please take a look at those. And also, if 

you have a 911 new hire class coming in, it would be nice 

to sit in on some of that instruction and just observe and 

listen to what's being instructed there. 

MR. BETTISON: Yeah, through the Chair, 

Commissioner Camille, absolutely. At one point, I used to 

directly oversee 911 when I was a commander and education. 

But also, that is a very, very stressful job. 

So, ensuring that with our 911 call takers, we're getting 

them what they need. 

The great thing about it is every one of the 

complaints, the calls are recorded so we can actually go 

through, and they do have a audit process with the 

supervisors where they periodically listen to the calls 

and coach them up. But rudeness should never be accepted. 

And so, we're going to continue on with our training. 

We will provide you with a copy of the curriculum and we 

do welcome you to sit in on a class. We hire quite 

frequently and so it shouldn't be long before we have a 

class and I'll get you that information. 

MS. CAMILLE: Thank you so much, Chief. 

I'm all set, Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Any other questions for 

the Chief? All right. Hearing none. 
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Before you go into the recommendations, I want 

to just ask if we could do it this way. We have so many 

people that are going to be recommended for promotions and 

we wanted to group them, Chief, if possible. We're going 

to do the first assistant chief separately, the rank of 

assistant chief separately, the deputy chief separately, 

and then lieutenant separately, sergeant separately, and 

detective separately. And the reason for that is because 

we have to make motions but we also want to get pictures 

of each individual and the groups because the groups are 

so big we'll have everybody come up after you make your 

recommendations. Is that okay with you? 

MR. BETTISON: I'm smiling and I'm pretty sure 

that they're smiling in anticipation as well, so 

absolutely. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. Thank you. 

MR. BETTISON: This is a proud day for me. 

So, my recommendation for the rank of First Assistant 

Chief is Assistant Chief Franklin Hayes. He is a 27-year 

veteran of the Detroit Police Department. As a police 

officer, sergeant, and lieutenant, he was assigned to 

various precincts to specialized units within the Detroit 

Police Department. In April of 2018, Lieutenant Hayes was 

appointed to the rank of captain and assigned to the 10th 

Precinct. In March of 2019, Captain Hayes was appointed 
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to the rank of commander and assigned to the 3rd Precinct. 

In June of 2021, Commander Hayes was appointed 

to the rank of deputy chief and assigned to Neighborhood 

Crime Suppression Support and Crime Strategies Bureau. 

In March of 2025, this is under me, Deputy Chief Hayes was 

appointed to the rank of assistant chief of police, Office 

of Strategic Policing. Assistant Chief Hayes has earned 

his bachelor's degree in business administration and 

leadership. Along with Assistant Chief Hayes' education 

and accomplishments as a Detroit police executive, he has 

completed the Michigan State University School of Staff 

and Command Police Executive and New Chief School, and 

that's MACP, and the Police Leadership Institute. 

Throughout his career, Assistant Chief Hayes has 

continually displayed his professionalism, commitment, and 

dedication to the Detroit Police Department and the city 

of Detroit. He is energetic, is everywhere. You call 

him, I have a nickname for Assistant Chief Hayes, he's my 

Swiss Army knife because no matter what you need, no 

matter what you need, I could, if I had a can of 

Campbell's soup right here, he would be able to open it. 

So that man is everywhere, just get it done. So, he's 

more than worthy, and I recommend him proudly to the rank 

of First Assistant Chief, and I hope that the Board of 

Police Commissioners supports. 
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MR. WOODS: Madam Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Is there a motion to 

approve the recommendation? 

MR. WOODS: Madam Chair, I enthusiastically make 

the motion to appoint Assistant Chief Franklin Hayes to 

First Assistant Chief. 

MR. MORRIS: I second that. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: The motion has been 

made by Commissioner Woods, seconded by Commissioner 

Williams. Is there any discussion? 

MR. MORRIS: Yes. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Go ahead. 

MR. MORRIS: I would just like to echo off 

what the Chief said. You know, since I've taken this 

position with the Board of Police Commissioners, and being 

able to engage with different people throughout the 

department, it has been an honor to work with AC Hayes, 

and he definitely have the community, you know, and the 

people out of the city of Detroit at heart, so I 

definitely want to say I'm proud of him for the work 

you've done. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Any other comments or questions? 

MS. IVEY: Through the Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Go ahead, Commissioner 
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Ivey. 

MS. IVEY: Thank you. I just want to say 

congratulations. It is my honor to sit here to be able to 

be part of you elevating the services that you do. 

You are highly recommended throughout the community; you 

are loved throughout the community. I resonate with the 

rest of the board. It is my honor to support and make 

sure you get this promotion. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Any other comments? 

MS. WATTS: Madam Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Go ahead, Commissioner 

Watts. 

MS. WATTS: Ditto. 

MR. WILLIAMS: I think, Madam Chair, I don't 

think I've seen him look that shook and nervous in a long 

time. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Any other comments? 

Thank you. I would just say, you know, I echo everything 

that has been said. I have had just ongoing communication 

with the Assistant Chief, and he works so hard, and it's 

very well known in the community that he is, he's all 

over, everywhere, all the time, and I thank him for his 

support and for communicating with me on a regular basis, 

and I'm sure all the other commissioners feel the same 
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way, and well deserved. Thank you. Commissioner Woods, 

and then Commissioner Jones. 

MR. WOODS: And for the record, this appointment 

would be effective the 15th of this month. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: May 15th? Okay. 

Commissioner Jones? 

MR. JONES: Yes, thank you, Madam Chair. 

I just want to say how good it is to have 

someone out there whose head is shinier than mine. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: All right. 

Any other discussion? Any further discussion? 

Hearing none. Then all those in favor, indicate 

by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? 

Congratulations. 

As First Assistant Chief Hayes, would you like 

to say a few words? 

MR. HAYES: I am a crier, so I got to keep it 

together here. With credibility and community trust, now, 

more important than ever. Chief, I thank you, and I'm 

honored for you to select me for this role, and the 

greatest police department in the country, and the world. 

Thank you to the board for your support of the Chief's 

recommendation. As Mother Bernice tee'd up, I'd like to 
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thank my family, my wife, my daughter, and quite frankly, 

everyone that has supported me on my journey here at DPD. 

To the men and women of the Detroit Police Department, to 

the community, to the City of Detroit, I stand proud, and 

I'm ready to serve as your first Assistant Chief of 

Police. Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. And now, if 

we could take pictures. Chief, any board members that 

want to get up as well? I think for this we would like to 

get up. Board members, and the Chief, and First Assistant 

Chief. 

Thank you. 

Your next recommendation, Chief? 

MR. BETTISON: The next recommendation is for 

Deputy Chief Kari Sloan to be promoted to Assistant Chief. 

Deputy Chief Kari Sloan is a 27-year veteran with the 

Detroit Police Department. As a police officer, sergeant, 

and lieutenant, she was assigned to various precincts and 

specialized units within the Detroit Police Department. 

In September of 2017, Lieutenant Sloan was appointed to 

the rank of Captain and was assigned to the Crime 

Intelligence Unit. In June of 2019, Captain Sloan was 

appointed to the rank of Commander and was assigned to the 

Fourth Precinct in Crime Control Strategies. 

In September of 2022, Commander Sloan was 
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appointed to the rank of Deputy Chief and was assigned to 

the Detective Bureau. Deputy Chief Sloan has earned a 

Bachelor's of Science Criminal Justice degree and a 

Master's of Business Administration Management degree from 

Wayne State University. Deputy Chief Sloan's education 

and accomplishments as a Detroit Police Executive, she has 

also completed the Senior Management Institute for Police, 

Police Executive Research Forum, and the Crisis 

Intervention Training. Throughout her career, Deputy 

Chief Sloan has continually displayed her professionalism, 

commitment, dedication to the Detroit Police Department 

and the City of Detroit. Deputy Chief Sloan is a 

consummate professional and I can say that I have watched 

her grow. Our project Green Light, she was instrumental 

in building it out. I remember when it was a cubicle up 

on the seventh floor and she actually spearheaded it and 

worked relentlessly and stayed there till the completion 

to get it to be where it is today. 

And so, I believe that she will be excellent in 

her new assignment and continuously helping us achieve our 

crime reduction goals in the city of Detroit. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Is there a motion to approve? 

MR. JONES: I'll move, Madam Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: The motion has been 
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made by Commissioner Jones. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Support by Commissioner 

Morris. Is there further discussion? 

MS. WATTS: Madam Chair? 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes, Commissioner 

Watts. 

MS. WATTS: I just wanted to say congratulations 

to you. You deserve this. Since the time I've been here, 

since January, and I've had engagement with you ,basically 

with citizens, and I just wanted to say a couple meetings 

we've been in you handled that very professionally with 

leadership and you showed empathy. So, I want to say 

thank you for that and congratulations again. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. Any other 

comments or questions? 

I would just like to make one as well. Since I 

have been on the Commission this third time, I just love 

running into, now, DC. Or, well, I shouldn't say that 

yet. But every time I see her, she has a smile on her 

face. She's so professional. It's good to have officers, 

you know, at that level who are just very engaging with 

the community, from what I have seen, and so, I'm very 

proud that, you know, you are moving up the ladder and 

that you will be in a leadership, higher leadership 

position. Congratulations. 
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Commissioner Woods. 

MR. WOODS: Well, congratulations to you and I'm 

looking forward to see you out in the community. 

Come walk a mile with us and be able to engage in the 

community because, new levels, new devils, you know. So, 

let's make sure that we're actively involved with the 

community. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Any other comments? 

MS. IVEY: Through the Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: I'm sorry, 

Commissioner. 

MS. IVEY: I just want to say thank you for 

your leadership. My encounter with you was professional. 

I have to agree with the board. Your smile is infectious 

and congratulations on your promotion and I know you're 

going to do well. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Any further discussion? Hearing none. 

All in favor indicate by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? 

The motion carries unanimously. 

Congratulations. 

MS. SLOAN: Thank you. Thank you. Through the 

Chair, I really appreciate this opportunity. I want to 
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thank you, Chief, for believing in my ability to lead this 

department and to fill such a huge role. Enforcement 

operations is, it's going to be a lot but I'm really 

looking forward to filling AC Fitzgerald's shoes and 

hoping to do as good of a job and I appreciate the board's 

support and the encounters that we've had have really been 

very positive and I appreciate your time and discussion 

and thank you, Chief. 

MR. BETTISON: You are welcome. 

Congratulations. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Congratulations. If we could do the same, we're going to 

come up to the front and take a picture. Thank you. 

And continue, Chief. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Woods announced an 

effective date. 

MR. WOODS: Yes. This is effective the 15th of 

this month. 

MS. GARNIER: Thank you. 

MR. WOODS: May 15th. Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Okay. Continue, Chief. 

MR. BETTISON: The next executive appointment, 

Commander Shanda Starks to the rank of Deputy Chief. 

Commander Starks is a 29-year veteran with the Detroit 
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Police Department. As a police officer, sergeant, and 

lieutenant, she was assigned to various precincts of 

specialized units within the Detroit Police Department. 

In February of 2022, Lieutenant Starks was promoted to the 

rank of Captain and was assigned to the 12th Precinct. 

After that, she took on a new assignment at the Detroit 

Detention Center. 

In October of 2023, Captain Starks was promoted 

to the rank of Commander and was assigned to the 10th 

Precinct, and after that, the office of the Chief of 

Police. Commander Starks has earned a bachelor's degree 

in arts and public service administration and business 

administration, a management degree, and a Master's of 

Arts in Organizational Leadership. Along with Commander 

Starks' education and accomplishments, she has been a 

member of the National Organization of Black Law 

Enforcement Executives, NOBLE, and the International 

Association of Chiefs of Police. In addition, she has 

completed the Police Executive and New Chief School, MACP, 

and she has completed the FBI's National Academy, 

something I have not done. 

Throughout her career, Commander Starks has 

continually displayed her professionalism, commitment, 

dedication, to the Detroit Police Department and the City 

of Detroit. She was, last assignment, was my Chief of 
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Staff. Job holds a tremendous weight and responsibility, 

interacting with the mayor's office, City Council, the 

Board of Police Commissioners, and the overall operation 

and effectiveness of that office to push and get paper out 

and everything else and ensuring that I'm there and moving 

and doing what I need to do. So, it is with great 

pleasure and enthusiasm that I recommend Commander Starks 

to the rank of Deputy Chief. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

MR. WOODS: Madam Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Mr. Woods. 

MR. WOODS: I enthusiastically make this motion 

to promote Shanda Starks to Deputy Chief, effective the 

15th of this month. 

MS. WATTS: Support. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. It has been 

moved by Commissioner Woods, seconded by Commissioner 

Watts. 

Is there any discussion? 

Commissioner Williams. 

MR. WILLIAMS: I'm just, you know, really 

excited to see her progress and growth through the 

department. Me and her has had encounters before in the 

past and I love to see when people elevate and grow and, 

you know, for her to grow into this position, her career, 
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I love it. I enjoy it. Congratulations and kudos. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Congratulations. 

Commissioner Jones. 

MR. JONES: I'll just make one comment. 

Well-deserved. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Any other discussion? 

Commissioner Watts. 

MS. WATTS: Yes, Madam Chair. In my encounter, 

since being on the board, your engagement has been 

professional and definitely empathy and definitely dealing 

with any citizens that I brought to you just to get some 

feedback or just concerns that they've had. So, I 

appreciate your leadership and your professionalism as 

well and your empathy toward the residents in District 5. 

Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Any other discussion? 

MS. IVEY: Through the chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEAELSCHE: I'm sorry, Commissioner. 

MS. IVEY: I don't know, my voice is super light 

today. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: I think it's the light 

that is kind of like shining in my eyes and I can't --

MS. IVEY: I just want to say my encounter has 

been very welcoming with you, your professionalism, your 

attentiveness, just overall personality is exceptional. 
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So, congratulations and well-deserved. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you, 

Commissioner. Commissioner Woods. 

MR. WOODS: Yes, I've watched Commander Starks 

really engage this community and bring a level of empathy, 

engaging with those who have been victimized by homicide, 

being able to raise tens of thousands of dollars for 

funerals and to be able to love on these families. 

And you call her at midnight, call her anytime, she's 

answering that phone. The same goes with First Assistant 

Chief Hayes. You call them anytime with communities 

having, anybody in the community having a problem with 

situations, they are there to help resolve problems. 

And so, this is well-deserved. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Any other comments? 

I would just like to say my experience also has 

been just extremely positive. She's the consummate 

professional, as the Chief has used that term. She's very 

respectful and keeps us up-to-date and current and I 

appreciate that immensely and I wish you all the best. 

And your background is just tremendous. Congratulations. 

Thank you. 

And any other comments or questions? 

Hearing none. 
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All in favor indicate by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? 

The motion carries. 

Congratulations. 

MS. STARK: First, I want to thank God for 

allowing me to embark on this opportunity. I can't 

believe I'm emotional. You did it. To Chief Bettison, my 

mentor of eight plus years, thank you for taking a chance 

on a lieutenant. And this honorable board, thank you for 

your vote of confidence. I will continue serving the 

citizens of Detroit as I have for the past 30 years. 

I would be remiss if I didn't thank my husband 

Steve, my two sons, my parents, family, and friends for 

all of their support. And of course, to my sororities of 

Delta Sigma Theta sorority. I'm looking forward to the 

next step of assisting our chief and mayor, with her 

mission, Rise Higher Detroit. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes. 

Chief, since we have three groups, two of which 

are very, very large, we won't ask for comments from each 

one of them but, you know, maybe just one big group 

picture, as I mentioned earlier, if that's okay. 

MR. BETTISON: Absolutely. As we approach the 

busy time of the year for the Detroit Police Department, 
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our summer months, it is imperative that we continue to 

fill the ranks and that our police officers have the 

supervision that they need. And so, these individuals, 

the lieutenants, and it's 11 of them, have studied, they 

passed a promotional examination, and I recommend that 

these 11 lieutenants, with the names that are before you, 

are approved for promotion. And I would ask that all 11 

lieutenants come up and stand before the board. 

MR. WOODS: If you can mention their name one by 

one, Chief, through the Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes, yes. 

You're going to list them, right, Chief? 

MR. BETTISON: Let me see -- or I can announce 

them. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Let's see what he's --

MS. GARNIER: Madam Chair, if I may, on behalf 

of the board, thank everyone for their patience, but we 

need everyone to be extremely careful of the cords, 

please. We don't want you to --

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes. 

MS. GARNIER: Nor the disconnect. Thank you. 

MR. BETTISON: Okay. Requesting for promotion 

to the rank of Lieutenant. Sergeant Trey Lyons, Sergeant 

Brent Rodak. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: It would be nice if we 
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knew who they were, so if you could raise your hand when 

your name is -- okay, or maybe move up, that would be 

great. 

MR. BETTISON: Okay. So, Sergeant Trey Lyons, 

Sergeant Brent Rodak, Sergeant Markila Thomas, Sergeant 

Daniel Nielsen, Sergeant Gwendolyn Stokes, Sergeant 

Richard Tucker, Sergeant Edward Jackson, Sergeant Robert 

Wellman, Sergeant Roland Frederick, Sergeant Tracey 

Miller-Pletzke, probably murdered your name, Tracey 

Miller, and they are more than deserving, and I recommend 

that --

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Did we miss someone? 

MR. BETTISON: And Sergeant William Cook. 

He was a late addition, I believe. Matter of fact. 

Yep. Yes. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: All right. 

So, what we're going to do is we're going to ask 

them, because of the cameras, and we are taping this, 

we're going to ask you all to come and make kind of like a 

U, in front of the tables here, and we'll take a picture 

of the group with the chief and the board members. 

We'll kind of like make a U, if we can. That's how we did 

it last time, and we were able to fit everybody, and this 

way the people on Zoom and at home can see. 

All right. 
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MR. WOODS: Yeah, we got to make the motion. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Sorry. 

All right. 

Is there a motion to approve the recommended 

promotions? 

MR. BOMAN: So moved. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. It's been moved 

by Boman and seconded by Commissioner Ivey. 

Is there a discussion? 

MR. WILLIAMS: Yes. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner. 

MR. MORRIS: I just want to say, out of 

everyone being promoted, I am familiar with Sergeant 

Jackson. He's one of the NPO sergeants, definitely has a 

heart for the people, a heart for the community, and is a 

true definition of a person who's operating in their God-

given calling. So, congratulations. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner Jones. 

MR. JONES: Madam Chair, I just want to concur 

with everything that Commissioner Morris has said 

regarding Sergeant Jackson. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Any other? Commissioner Williams. 

MR. WILLIAMS: I know Sergeant Jackson, he 

seemed to be a subject of conversation in here, man. 
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So, you know, congratulations to Sergeant Jackson. 

We met, he heard who I was, and the first time, in the 

first encounter at number two, when I walked in there, he 

already knew what I was coming in there for. And, you 

know, ever since then, man, he has been one of the guys 

that I can call, or he call me, and a wonderful person to 

work with as far as the NPO's over there. 

So, congratulations again to you for your promotion. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Commissioner Ivey. 

MS. IVEY: Now, I would sit here and not be 

remiss to say I've watched you since you came into the 

academy. I've watched you grow. You've ate barbecue at 

our homes. So, I have to say your work is exemplary. 

You are a dedicated member of this police force, and it is 

my honor, my honor, my honor, my honor, to say 

congratulations. You're going to do well. Your work is 

going to take you far and keep doing what you're doing 

because you do it very well. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you, Commissioner 

Ivey. 

Commissioner Williams. 

MR. WILLIAMS: One more thing because Sergeant 

Jackson, he's took all the attention. I don't want to 

take away from all the other officers up here as well. 
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You know, I want to congratulate y'all too for your hard 

work and dedication as you further your career too. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

MR. MORRIS: And thank you for your commitment 

to the city of Detroit and the citizens of Detroit for 

making it this far. It just shows a reflection of your 

work and of, you know, your service to the community. 

So, thank you all. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Commissioner Woods. 

MR. WOODS: And let me add that we have 

thoroughly vetted these candidates. We have went through 

every nick and cranny of their files, and they have deemed 

themselves to be worthy of this particular promotion, this 

particular promotion. And so, I just want the record to 

reflect that, and the citizens of the city of Detroit know 

that we have done our due diligence on these. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: And the effective date? 

MR. WOODS: Well, the effective date, that don't 

apply to them. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Oh, it doesn't. Okay. 

All right. 

Any other comments, questions? 

All right. 

All in favor indicate by saying aye. 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · ·

· · · · · · · · · 

· · ·

· · · · · · · ·

· · ·

· · ·

· · ·

· ·

· ·

· · · · · · ·

· · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · ·

· · · · · · · · 

· ·

· · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · ·

· · · · · · · · · 

· ·

· · · · · · · · 

· ·

· · · · · · · · 

· ·

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? 

The motion carries unanimously. 

Thank you all. And we're going to go up and 

take a picture with you. 

Chief, if we could, we have a very large group 

coming up, and here's our recommendation from the board. 

If we could have the individuals that you list, stand up 

at their chairs for right now, and then we will take the 

vote, and then they will come up for the picture after the 

vote, if that's okay. 

All right? 

MR. BETTISON: Absolutely. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. 

Let's do it that way. 

MR. BETTISON: And you would like me to list 

them one by one? 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: One by one. 

Yeah, we want everyone's name listed. 

MR. BETTISON: Okay. And are you going to vote 

as a group or one by one? 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: We'll vote as a group, 

you know, but we just have to have them listed one by one. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: The commissioners are reminded 

that, if you want to pull a name, all you have to do is 
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say, I pull Francis Jackson, and then that person will 

know that they will be voted on separately, after you do 

the motion in gross. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. And those will 

be voted separately, individually, correct? 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Any name that is pulled will 

be voted on separately after the motion is adopted for 

those who remain in the group. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. The big group. 

Okay. Commissioner Woods? 

MR. WOODS: Yeah, and through the Chair, I 

believe that there may be one or two, if we got it right, 

that we have to be able to move on for next week based 

upon our two-week rule. And so, I'm hoping that they have 

that straightened out in being able to make sure that we 

can be able to go accordingly. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: You're saying that there's 

going to be a motion to postpone the vote? 

MR. WOODS: Yeah, we'll see. Let's see if they 

got it together. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Before you move on, 

Chief, so what I'm understanding, Madam Parliamentarian, 

is if, any of these individuals are pulled, we would vote 

on them today. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: But that motion could be to 
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postpone. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Oh, there could be a 

motion to --

PARLIAMENTARIAN: But what the board would have 

to do is move to adopt the Chief's recommendation for 

promotion. During that debate, a commissioner can move to 

postpone the motion to adopt to next week's meeting. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: For the whole group? 

Or just for those that are pulled? 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: For those who are pulled. 

So, let's be clear. The Chief is going to call out the 24 

names. When you take the motion to adopt the Chief's 

recommendation, at that time, any commissioner who wants 

to pull a name, will say, I pull the name of Henrietta 

Ivey, Beverly Watts, Robert Jones. 

You then would vote on the group that remains. 

And after that motion, then we would say, we need a motion 

to adopt the Chief's recommendation to promote Henrietta 

Ivey. Now, during that debate on that motion for that 

officer alone, if someone wants to postpone, they can move 

to postpone to next week. I'm not going anywhere. 

I'll be here. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay, Chief. 

MR. WOODS: We may be able to make it to the 

Piston Game. 
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CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: This is more important. 

MR. WOODS: It is. 

MR. BETTISON: Absolutely. I agree with you, 

Chairperson Dewaelsche, that this is more important. 

MR. WOODS: It is. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes. 

MR. BETTISON: It is with great pleasure that I 

recommend the following police officers and detectives for 

the rank of Sergeant. I'll start with calling the names. 

Police Officer Amir Amen-Ra. Police Officer Latoya 

Peacock. Police Officer James Hall. Detective Shannon 

Bullock. Police Officer Morgan Tonti. 

Detective Jeffery Cooper. Police Officer Ian 

McBee. Detective Shelby Kersten. Detective Caitlyn 

Patrick-Davidson. Detective Eugene Fielder. 

Police Officer Mitchell Griggs. Corporal David Garcia. 

Detective LaRondo Tyler. Detective Melinda 

Cook. Police Officer David Vazquez. Police Officer Ian 

Marchand. Police Officer Travis Humphlett. 

Detective David Wiggins. Detective Angela Rice. 

Police Officer Daniel Polisuk. Police Officer 

Anthony Porcalla. Detective Terence Barron. 

Police Officer Nigel Villarreal. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Are those the 24? 

Chief, I think we're going to request a five-minute 
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recess. We have to just discuss something here real 

quick. Yeah, the board members can leave the room and go 

into the board room, and the officers can sit at this 

point. So, a five-minute recess for the board members. 

MR. WOODS: We can't do that. We'd have to be 

in closed session. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Can we go into closed 

session? 

I don't know what's going on. 

Tell me what's going on. 

Chief, we're not going to do the recess because 

we would violate the Open Meetings Act, so what we're 

going to do is we're going to go ahead and make the motion 

to approve. And at that point --

MR. WOODS: Well, he's adding a name. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. 

You're adding a name now, Chief? 

MR. BETTISON: Yes. Are we back? 

Am I able to add the name now? 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes. 

MR. BETTISON: Police Officer Latoya Chavies. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Is that the only name? 

MR. BETTISON: Yes. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. Now is there a 

motion to approve the recommendations? 
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MS. CAMILLE: Madam Chair, I would like to pull 

Corporal Latoya Chavies. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: -- motion to approve first, 

and then once we go and ask for debate, then you can pull. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. 

Is there a motion to approve the 

recommendations? 

MR. WOODS: Motion to approve the 

recommendations. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: The motion has been 

made by Commissioner Woods, seconded by Commissioner 

Morris. Is there any discussion? 

MS. CAMILLE: Madam Chair, I would like to pull 

the following members. Corporal Latoya Chavies, Officer 

Amir Amen-Ra, Officer Mitchell Griggs, and Officer Travis 

Humphlett. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. 

Can you repeat those names again? 

MS. CAMILLE: Yes, ma'am. 

Corporal Latoya Chavies, Officer Amir Amen-Ra, 

Officer Mitchell Griggs, and Officer Travis Humphlett. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Spell the last name. 

MS. CAMILLE: H-U-M-P-H-L-E-T-T. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. All right. 

Now we're going to vote on the motion to approve all the 
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others, correct? 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Yes, ma'am. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. Is there any 

further discussion on the others? Hearing none. All in 

favor indicate by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? The motion 

carries. Those that were not pulled are approved for 

promotion to the rank of Sergeant. Congratulations. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Now you will take the 

individual. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: We're going to do each 

individual? 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Yes, because they still might 

end up being approved. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes. Okay. I may need 

some help with the names because I wrote down some of the 

last names primarily. Is there a motion to approve the 

recommendation to promote Latoya Chavies? 

MR. WILLIAMS: I'll recommend. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. 

The motion is made by Commissioner Williams. 

Is there a second? 

MR. MORRIS: I have a motion. I'll move to deny 

the Chief's recommendation to promote Corporal Latoya 
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Chavies. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: What the board needs to do is 

to have the motion to approve and vote it down. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. 

So, is there a second? 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Need that motion to accept. 

Now, you can vote it down, but you've got to have the 

motion to accept in order to discuss this issue. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Right, I have a motion 

was made by Commissioner Williams. And I need a second. 

Is there a second? 

MR. JONES: I will support it. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner Jones 

second the motion. Okay. Now there's discussion. 

Is there discussion? 

MR. MORRIS: Yes, we received the information on 

this partially before yesterday, the rest of it yesterday. 

Considering the research and my due diligence that I have 

done in the best interest of the community and the 

citizens of the city of Detroit, I do not think that that 

would be a good idea. Not only do I question her moving 

up to sergeant, I question actually her being a police 

officer with the Detroit Police Department for the 

egregious things that I've seen. Based upon that, I'm not 

in support of that. That's what I have to say. 
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CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Further discussion? 

Commissioner Boman. 

MR. BOMAN: Yeah, a request for information. 

Could Commissioner Morris please enumerate at least some 

of the egregious things he saw and where he saw it? 

MR. MORRIS: Okay. Yes, sir. 

So, if you Google this officer's name on the 

internet, you will see multiple news articles. These news 

articles contain content where she is being accused of 

dishonesty. She is being accused of misconduct as it 

relates to child abuse. A citizen of the city of Detroit 

who went into a precinct, she followed that individual out 

to the parking lot of the precinct and called the citizen 

bitches and hoes. And she arrested the individual on a 

warrant before she was able to determine, before she 

verified that there was actually a warrant for that 

individual. 

And that's just what's public. There's a lot of 

things that's not non-public that is in your packet. 

You're probably, you're not going to be able to get 

through it all today because it's very lengthy. And I 

just have to be transparent, Chief. I'm not able to move 

forward on my end when it comes to this one. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Is there any further 

discussion? 
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MS. CAMILLE: Madam Chair, discussion. 

For this particular member, I won't go into 

detail about the information that I looked at. But what I 

will say, in general, is that when we are considering 

promotions to leadership positions in the department, 

folks need to be exceptional. Because we need leaders 

that are going to set a good example for new officers 

coming into the department. I believe the Chief, as well 

as this board of police commissioners, is looking to take 

this department to new levels of exceptional service. 

And so, it's important that we have leaders that are in 

position to be able to show that example, as well as 

enforce with their subordinates what's expected. And so, 

I will not be supporting this promotion either. And thank 

you for the opportunity to provide some comments. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Any other discussion? 

Commissioner Ivey. 

MS. IVEY: Through the Chair. I'm a little 

disheartened by that, that we have a officer on the street 

with egregious encounters. And with that being said, I 

have to support the board on that. I will not move 

forward as well. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Any other comments? 

Commissioner Watts. 

MS. WATTS: Just for clarification as well. And 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

· · · · 

· · ·

· · · · 

· · ·

· · ·

· · · · 

· · ·

· · ·

· · · · · · · · · · 

· ·

· · · 

· · · 

· ·

· ·

· ·

· · · · · · ·

· ·

· ·

· ·

· ·

· ·

· · · 

· ·

· · · · 

· ·

it is alarming, everything. Thank you, Commissioner 

Morris for your comments and for awareness, I wasn't 

aware. But is any of this tied to where there's a list 

established by the collective bargaining and it's just the 

next person automatically have, opposed to your 

recommendation, or how does that work? Is this a list 

that has to go to the next person per the collective 

bargaining unit? 

MR. BETTISON: Through the Chair. Commissioner 

Watts, I'm glad you raised this particular point and I'm 

going to have Second Deputy Chief Ha. Second Deputy Chief 

Ha, are you here? So, we have a court decision and a 

ruling from the courts and that is standing and binding, 

and the courts have ruled that Police Officer Chavies 

shall be promoted to sergeant. 

And so, I will have my lawyer go into further 

details and for the rest of any members that will that 

were pulled, I will request a closed-door session because 

some of the things that we're talking and I'm all for 

transparency, but some of the things that are of 

particular concern, I feel that it should be discussed in 

a closed-door session. And then, once the decision is 

made by the board, to update the community as to the 

particulars. So that's my request. But Attorney Ha, 

please elaborate. 
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MR. HA: Through the Chair. Just to give you 

some background in regards to Corporal Chavies. She was 

denied the opportunity to take a promotional exam that 

went to arbitration. The arbitrator ruled that she should 

be given the opportunity to take the promotional exam. 

We administered the promotional exam, and she was able to 

successfully -- I'm sorry. 

So, the arbitrator ruled that she would be 

allowed to take the promotional exam to City of Detroit 

Law Department, appealed it, took it to the Court of 

Appeals and Court of Appeals upheld the decision of the 

arbitrator. And therefore, we had to administer the 

promotional exam. Once she went through the promotional 

exam, her scores were high enough to be eligible to become 

a sergeant. And once she has made the list, based upon 

her promotional assessment by collective bargaining 

agreement, she should be promoted. And we've had numerous 

past arbitration decisions in regards to the topic in 

regards to when a member becomes eligible on the 

promotional list. 

MS. WATTS: Thank you for that. And like my 

earlier statement, I agree with Commissioner Morris. 

However, I think this point was very important to bring 

forth because I would hate for the public to think that 

the chief is just arbitrarily not looking into anyone's 
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background and putting forth promotions. Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you, Commissioner 

Watts. Commissioner Morris and then Commissioner Boman. 

No, Mr. Morris and then Commissioner Boman. 

MR. MORRIS: I agree with Commissioner Watts. 

So, this is not nothing to say that the chief is ignoring 

things and just pushing stuff forward. The department, as 

he said, it had to go through arbitration, which mean, 

obviously the department, initially, at one point in time, 

might have disagreed or maybe just thought she was 

ineligible at this time. So, it's not a reflection of the 

chief or saying the chief is trying to put someone on the 

street that's bold. So that's not what I'm implying. 

So, my decision is based upon the city charter. 

It gives the Board of Police Commissioners the power and 

authority over promotions. And so, I'm -- my decision not 

based upon that. If the court wants to, you know, I know 

you guys deal with that in court, but if they want to send 

something to the Board of Police Commissioners and we go 

forward that way, then sure. But I would, in good 

conscious, I cannot move forward without letting it be 

known. The people of the city of Detroit elected us to do 

this job. They elected us to make sure that they're 

protected and that we have the right people out there 

patrolling the streets and working in the community. 
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These things are concerning. So, what I would 

do, I would, so that we can discuss further because we 

haven't spoken with, I would have liked to have spoken 

with this particular officer because I'm a product of 

redemption or maybe there's something, maybe I could have 

it wrong. Maybe I'm misreading it. I don't know. And I 

would like to hear what she has to say about this. So, I 

would, I motion the board to postpone the chief's 

recommendation to promote Corporal Latoya Chavies. 

I motion -- I move to postpone it till next week. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: A motion has been made 

to postpone and a second has been made by Ms. Commissioner 

Carter. Is there any discussion? 

MR. BOMAN: Yes, I believe I was the next person 

to be called on. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Except that we have a 

motion, we have to take action. 

MR. BOMAN: I will use this as an opportunity 

then to speak against this motion. And I'm speaking 

against the motion because I believe the public should 

hear what's up here. For one thing, I'm looking here and 

this is public information, that we've had, this has 

consequences and I want the public to understand these 

things have consequences. Officer Chavies was found to 

have punched her daughter several times in the face and 
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body. An internal probe concluded she lied to 

investigators about it. 

Now, why is that last part emphasized instead of 

punching her daughter? Because, and we've had this in 

other cases, and the principle is Giglio impaired. And we 

have denied officers or are denied people applications to 

even become officers on that basis because their testimony 

is not useful in court. And in this case, cases have been 

dismissed because this officer's testimony was used. 

The fact that this has and the Assistant Chief Ha 

definitely brought up an important matter here regarding 

the fact that there is a collective bargaining agreement 

about that. And that is why it is so important that we 

pass the resolution that has been postponed to next week. 

That calls on the mayor to only appoint 

negotiators who will negotiate a contract that is 

consistent with the city charter and not assert the 

authority of the board of police commissioners as the 

current contract does. And likewise, it is essential that 

this is why, next week, when we vote on that resolution, 

that we must pass it. Also calling on the City Council to 

deny any contract because they're the ones who ultimately 

have to prove it, to deny any contract that violates the 

city charter, specifically having language that asserts 

the role of the Board of Police Commissioners because that 
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is the real crux of the matter here. I have spoken. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay, Madam 

Parliamentarian. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: The current motion is the 

motion to postpone. All comments have to be on the motion 

to postpone. 

MR. BOMAN: It is because I want us to vote on 

this now and I want us to vote against the motion. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: A motion has been made. 

It wasn't -- was it seconded? It was seconded by Ms. 

Commissioner Carter to postpone. 

MR. MORRIS: Yes, once again, I understand what 

this article says. Can we postpone it a week? 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. That's all I 

need to hear is that it's to postpone. All in favor 

indicate by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? 

MR. BOMAN: Nay. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. The motion 

carries to postpone this particular recommendation until 

next week. Okay. Now we have a second recommendation. 

Amir Amen-Ra. Okay. Is there a motion to approve that 

recommendation? 

MR. WOODS: I make a motion to approve the 
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recommendation. 

MR. MORRIS: Support. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. The motion has 

been made by Commissioner Woods supported by Commissioner 

Morris. Is there a discussion? No discussion? 

MR. WOODS: She pulled it on it. You know, this 

is the opportunity, through the Chair. If she -- I'm 

trying to see what was there. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes. 

MS. CAMILLE: Through the Chair. I didn't know 

I was required to speak to it. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Well, yeah, if you pull 

it. 

MS. CAMILLE: Yes, I can do that. I can do 

that. I won't, again, I won't go into the information 

that we were provided. But the history that I see with 

this particular officer does not indicate to me that 

they're ready for leadership and need some additional 

experience and some space placed between some activities 

that they have in their record before being promoted. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Any other discussion? 

MS. WATTS: Madam Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner Watts. 

MS. WATTS: What other specific -- I'm sorry. 

Just any details? Any more details? 
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What was researched? 

Anything that you can give just a couple 

examples. 

MS. CAMILLE: Madam Chair, I don't know. Is it 

appropriate to share what we received in confidential 

packets on the discipline history of officers? 

MS. WATTS: Is there any public information? 

I'm not asking for anything that's in confidential 

information. I'm not familiar with this individual, so 

I'm just asking is any public information that can be 

shared? 

MS. CAMILLE: What was shared with me in our 

confidential packets is what's of concern to me. And so, 

I won't share that over the microphone. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner Boman and 

then Commissioner Morris. 

MR. BOMAN: I'd like to move that we go into 

executive session to further discuss this particular 

promotion, so we can hear all the pertinent --

PARLIAMENTARIAN: There is not executive 

session, it's the closed session. 

MR. HA: Madam Chair, it would be a closed 

session, but you would have to give the members the 

opportunity to evoke it under the Open Meetings Act. 

MR. WOODS: Absolutely. 
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CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: So, okay. 

MS. CAMILLE: Madam Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Go ahead, 

Commissioner. 

MS. CAMILLE: I move to postpone since we have a 

motion on the floor to approve. I move to postpone to 

allow the other commissioners opportunity to look at the 

file further, before we bring this member back. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Motion has been made to 

postpone the promotion of Amin Amen-Ra. 

MS. WATTS: Support. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Supported by 

Commissioner Watts. Any discussion? 

MR. MORRIES: Yes. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner Morris. 

MR. MORRIS: Is it a way that we can have, like, 

a sidebar or go in some sort of recess? Because if these 

officers are here, their family is here and they made 

preparation for a promotion, I would like -- I don't want 

to hold them up. I mean, I would like to because we 

already got one already pushed over. If this is a way we 

can resolve this and to have discussion about this and get 

it done today. You know, they did come out. People came 

out. They took time out their day, and we do want to, if 

we can resolve this, get this resolved. 
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What do you say Commissioner Woods? 

MR. WOODS: Through the Chair. Unfortunately, 

we've been indicated by the Parliamentarian and 

Corporation Counsel that that that's not a viable solution 

and based upon Second Deputy Ha, and so, you know, I think 

the motion to postpone everyone that she named is 

appropriate to be able to organize this better to be able 

to vet this out. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: You can't do a group. 

MR. WOODS: I understand that. I know that. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Individually. We 

already have two motions to postpone. So --

MR. WOODS: It's been voted --

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: We have a motion on the 

floor. Any further discussion to postpone? All right. 

All in favor indicate by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? Okay. The 

motion is to postpone that. I mean, the motion carries to 

postpone. All right. The next one is Griggs. 

MR. WOODS: Motion to postpone. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. There's a motion 

to postpone that promotion, that recommendation. 

Is there a second? 

MS. WATTS: Support. 
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CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: There's no 

recommendation because you haven't made the motion to 

adopt. 

MR. WOODS: Okay. I'll make a motion to 

approve. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Approve the 

postponement? 

MR. WOODS: No, no, you got to approve in the 

person. Then we got to discuss, then we got to --

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Motion has been made to 

approve the promotion of Griggs. Is that correct? Okay. 

Is there a second? It's been supported by Commissioner 

Morris. Any discussion? 

MS. CAMILLE: Motion to postpone. 

MR. WOODS: Second. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Motion has been made by 

Commissioner Camille, seconded by Commissioner Woods to 

postpone. Is there any discussion? All in favor indicate 

by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? The motion 

carries. And now you're going to have to help -- is it 

Humphlett? Humphlett. Motion to adopt to adopt or 

approve the recommendation of the chief for promotion to 

Sergeant of Humphlett. Is there a motion? 
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MR. WOODS: I make a motion. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Motion has been made by 

Commissioner Woods. Is there a second? Commissioner 

Carter has seconded. All in favor -- I mean, is there any 

discussion? A motion has been made by Commissioner 

Camille, seconded by Commissioner Morris to postpone. 

Any discussion? All in favor indicate by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? The motion 

carries. All right. So, we have one, two, we have four 

that are being postponed until next week. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Just as a reminder to the new 

commissioners, you cannot postpone beyond your next 

regular meeting. Now, when you get to next week, you 

could have another motion to postpone. But you can't 

postpone beyond next week. And since next week is your 

evening -- I'm not sure the board will want to bring this 

up. I mean, that's not the parliamentarian's call, but I 

just want to remind you that at next week's meeting, you 

could move to postpone and kick that can to the third 

week. But you would have to make individual motions to 

postpone because I won't be at the community meeting. 

I don't want you all calling me. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: All right. Okay. 

At this time, I would like to ask the 20 that 
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were approved for promotion to come up front -- oh, no, we 

have to approve them. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: We did. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: We approved them. 

Okay. So come up front, so we can take a group picture 

with the chief and the board members. Thank you. 

Congratulations to the sergeants, the new sergeants, and 

now we have three, I'm sorry, go ahead, Chief, our next 

promotions. 

MR. BETTISON: At this point, I'm recommending 

three for the promotion to the rank of detective. 

Police officer Jermel Mitchell, police officer Adam 

Langford, and police officer Zazearra Carter. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: It's been recommended 

that there are three promotions to detective. Is there a 

motion? 

MR. WOODS: So moved. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Second. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: It's been moved by 

Commissioner Woods, seconded by Commissioner Williams. 

Is there any discussion? 

MS. CAMILLE: Madam Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Go ahead, Commissioner. 

MS. CAMILLE: I would like to pull officer 

Zazearra Carter. 
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CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. Do we have to 

have another motion, Madam Parliamentarian? Okay. 

Any other discussion? 

MR. BOMAN: Was it seconded? 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: It doesn't need to be 

seconded. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: All in favor indicate 

by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? 

Motion carries to promote two of those to detective and to 

pull Zazearra Carter. And the motion carries. Oh, no. 

I'm sorry. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Now we need to go back to that 

individual. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Right. Okay. 

MR. WOODS: I make a motion to approve Zazearra 

Carter. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. A motion has 

been made to approve Zazearra Carter. Is there a second? 

MR. MORRIS: Second. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: It's been seconded by 

by Commissioner Morris. Is there any discussion? 

MS. CAMILLE: Madam Chair, motion to postpone to 

allow commissioners to review that particular file again. 
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MR. BOMAN: Second. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. It's been moved 

to postpone until next week. Seconded by Commissioner 

Camille. Seconded by Commissioner Boman. 

Any discussion? 

Commissioner Morris. 

MR. MORRIS: I don't know if I missed something, 

but this officer's, there's nothing that I see that's 

egregious. I don't see anything. I just, you know, 

maybe, I missed something. I don't know, but it looks 

this looks like a great promotion to me. That's all. 

That's all I had to say, because I don't understand why 

we're postponing this officer and holding this officer up. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: You agree? 

So, we need to vote on the motion to postpone, 

correct? 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: To vote on the motion -- the 

motion to postpone is a higher-ranking motion. 

Commissioner Woods has it. Then the main motion, which is 

the motion to adopt. The motion to postpone is defeated. 

Then you're back to the motion to approve the chief's 

recommendation. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. So, for the 

motion to postpone, any further discussion? Hearing none, 

all in favor indicate by saying aye. 
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THE BOARD: Aye. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: On the motion to postpone, 

Commissioners. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes, this is a motion 

to postpone. 

Okay. 

All in favor indicate by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? 

THE BOARD: No. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Roll call. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Roll call. 

Okay. Madam Secretary. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Woods. 

MR. WOODS: No. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Boman. 

MR. BOMAN: Aye. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Camille. 

MS. CAMILLE: Yes. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Carter. 

MS. CARTER: No. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Ivey. 

MS. IVEY: No. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Jones. 

MR. JONES: No. 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · 

· · · 

· ·

· · · · · · ·

· · · · · · · · · 

· ·

· ·

· ·

· ·

· ·

· · · 

· · · 

· · · 

· · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Morris. 

MR. MORRIS: No. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Watts. 

MS. WATTS: No. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Williams. 

MS. WILLIAMS: No. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Dewaelsche. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: No. 

MS. GARNIER: Two yay votes and --

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Eight. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: The motion is denied 

not to postpone, is defeated. Now we're going back to the 

motion to approve and is there any discussion? 

Commissioner Williams. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Yeah. I just want to 

congratulate Adam Langford for moving up to detective. I 

remember when he started the academy, I actually went to 

the graduation when he completed the academy and also he 

was a police officer in my district at the 12th Precinct 

and as long as I've known him, he's been a great guy, 

honest guy, and always had his head on the shoulder. So, 

congratulations on the promotion. He's been waiting for 

quite some time. Let me say that. 

MR. WOODS: Wrong person though. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Yeah, Madam Chair, the motion 
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is on this particular individual. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Was that the motion for that? 

Okay. I thought you said open -- any discussion. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: For this motion. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: That motion to postpone is 

defeated. Now we're back to the motion to approve the 

Chief's recommendation for the young lady. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Sorry. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: That's okay. 

MR. WILLIAMS: I meant it though, but at the 

wrong time. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. Any other 

discussion? Hearing none. All in favor to promote 

Zazearra Carter, indicate by saying aye. 

THE BAORD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? The motion 

carries. 

So, Chief, your three detectives have been 

approved and so I will ask that they please come up front 

for a picture. 

MR. BETTISON: Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. We want to 

congratulate all those that were promoted. 

Again, congratulations. 

Give it a minute and then we will go to oral 
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communications. 

Okay. We're at oral communications and public 

comments. Please limit your comments to two minutes and 

remember that inappropriate language and comments will not 

be tolerated and may delay TV broadcasts and video posts. 

Do we have our first speaker, please? 

MS. UNDERWOOD: Thank you, Madam Chair. 

Our first three speakers will be Ms. Fredia 

Butler (phonetic), Josh Mann (phonetic), and Ms. Shanita 

Williams (phonetic). 

MS. BUTLER: Good afternoon. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Good afternoon. 

MS. BUTLER: Wake up sleeping giants. 

Project 2025 has almost been completed. The Supreme Court 

has ruled against the 13th, 14th, and 15th Amendments of 

the United States Constitution that granted full 

citizenship to former slaves and are now trying to deny 

those promises. Many black and brown people have been 

fired from jobs, denied citizenship, and all that 

represented what we know, as being free, are now working 

to deny our rights to vote. These egregious acts will not 

stand. 

Commissioners, people of color have bled and 

died for us to get this far and we're not going back. 

There will be some officers who will be disrespectful and 
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use and cause confusion. I hope you will rule justly and 

work with Chief Bettison to do the right thing. The acts 

of our president encouraging violence, disregarding the 

law, and giving pardons, has already caused negative 

behaviors of some of our officers. 

Please do not be influenced by who appointed you 

or who you know, but by your conscience and the law. 

Be men and women with integrity and courage. Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Next speaker, please. 

MR. MANN: Hi, everybody. Thanks for what you 

do. It's an awesome job that you all have. The Flock 

surveillance, DPD considering getting drones. I support 

police officers and I support drones. 

I don't support a third-party group such as 

Flock and Palantir having access to this data. The 

officer that spearheaded the green light camera, that was 

a success for the city, and I'd gear more towards that 

than offering surveillance to a third party that's a 

subscription-based policy. 2027 federal authorities 

mandated that all cars have interior surveillance. Our 

phones already surveil us. If we talk about a vacuum, 

we're going to get ads for vacuum cleaners. We need to 

protect law officers of the future by keeping it human-

based law enforcement. Just as Home Depot and every 
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grocery store opted into self-checkout lines, it took away 

jobs, just as artificial intelligence is going to take 

away jobs from the police community. 

My great-grandfather was a Detroit police 

officer and to see all these officers being promoted is a 

beautiful thing and to assure that they have job security 

for their kids and grandkids, we need to opt out of AI 

surveillance as far as third party. If it's DPD owned and 

operated AI surveillance that they control it, I'm for 

that. But for having a third party, Ford is now going to 

own everything that happens in your car. Same with Chevy. 

2027 it's mandated. Now they'll be able to sell that 

information of what you like to drink, what you like to 

eat, the music you like to listen to, and where you're 

considering taking vacation. 

That is their property, just as Flock 

surveillance. It's not our property, it's not our 

community, it's a third party that's worldwide that offers 

subscription. DPD wants drones, I support that. I do not 

support Flock-based drones. I do not support Flock. 

Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. We have one 

comment, our commissioner. 

MR. BOMAN: I want to ask the community member, 

if he could, please send me the information about this, 
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because I wasn't aware of it, this law requiring that cars 

have surveillance equipment installed in them. Could you 

send that to scott.boman@DetroitMI.gov, please? 

MR. MANN: Yes. Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. Any other 

comments by Commissioners? Thank you. Our next speakers. 

MS. GARNIER: Our next speaker will be Ms. 

Williams, Ms. Bernice Smith, and Minister Eric Blunt. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Who's the next speaker? 

Okay. 

MS. WILLIAMS: It's been over a year and a half 

when I came to you guys, especially you two, the Chair and 

Darryl Woods, complaining about Cheryl Hall, LaShonda 

Houston, and Chauncey Gardner. Officers that threatened 

to kill me. Nothing's been done. Chief, you leaving? 

You don't want to hear this about your officers? See, 

this is the problem right here. It starts at the top. 

You're not going to threaten my life and act 

like this ain't been going on. I've been complaining 

about LaShonda Houston daughter coming into my apartment 

illegally. I want to get a PPO on her. I don't know her 

first and last name, but I definitely would get it on 

LaShonda Houston because she stays downstairs and she's an 

ex-offender on the Detroit Police Department with a fake 

name. I'm tired of this garbage. It start at the top and 

mailto:scott.boman@DetroitMI.gov
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it's from the bottom. 

Now, if you don't want to hear the truth, you 

want to suppress the truth, when you are in authority, 

make this make sense to me. Because like I said, I come 

here, I've been coming here for an awfully long time, and 

this is for my case. And it's going to be a problem with 

anybody in here who did not comply to the Constitution, 

the law, or the charter, when you guys continue to call in 

favors and act like this does not exist. When this woman 

broke into my apartment, violated my vagina, drugged me, 

and all this type of stuff, it ain't nothing being done. 

Absolutely not. It's not acceptable, period. 

Now, like I said, Cheryl Hall has been on the force over 

15 years. LaShonda Houston is on the force with a fake 

name, an ex-convict. 

And Chauncey Gardner, his grandfather was on the 

force. They was all at 3426 Mack Avenue. Chauncey worked 

there. Them two live there, taking up bed spaces. 

Michelle Hall, that's her fake name for her housing 

voucher. So, like I said, if it's not taken care, they 

investigating you illegal voting anyway. Send them right 

to the Detroit Police Department so they can take it back, 

because clearly you all can't do this job by the 

Constitutional law or the Charter. 

MR. WOODS: Thank you. Next speaker. 
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MS. SMITH: What a wonderful afternoon. 

Very -- good afternoon. 

THE BOARD: Good afternoon. 

MS. SMITH: I'm sorry I didn't speak to you. 

I have learned quite a bit this afternoon. It's been very 

interesting, and I just want to let you know you did a 

darn good job, all of you. You deserve to be called 

commissioners today, because you took in a lot of 

information. My only thing is, I hope that we're doing 

all right downtown. I haven't heard any complaints about 

the youngsters being down there disrupting the area, and I 

hope we will continue to be in that situation, where we 

won't have to hear anybody being arrested for disturbing 

our city. That's all I want to know. 

I just want to make sure that it's being taken 

care of, and that we don't have to be worried about it 

anymore. That's all I have to say, and hope everyone have 

a good Mother's Day. You see what they did to me, don't 

you? They had me going to the barbershop, y'all. Look at 

my hair. For Mother's Day. I don't know. 

When you get to be 92, you've got to take 

anything from them. All right. Have a good Mother's Day 

to those who are mothers. 

MR. WOODS: Thank you. Next speaker. 

MR. BLUNT: Good afternoon, Board. I'm Minister 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

· · ·

· · · · 

· · · · 

· · ·

· · · · · · · ·

· · ·

· · · · 

· · ·

· · ·

· · · 

· ·

· ·

· ·

· ·

· ·

· · · 

· ·

· ·

· · · · · · ·

· · · · 

· · · 

· ·

· ·

· · · 

· · · · · · ·

Eric Blunt from Sacred Heart Catholic Church, right here 

in Detroit. This may have seemed like a chaotic meeting, 

but it really wasn't. Real issues that I have been 

bringing up for the past four years were really addressed. 

The chief had the courage to deny an officer he 

thought wasn't fit, overturned through arbitration, so he 

had to bring it here. And I admire you commissioners who 

challenged those appointments and those promotions, 

Commissioner Camille and Commissioner Boman, on how do we 

fix this? I'm glad to hear there's going to be a vote 

next week to talk about some type of resolution or 

statement by this board saying, wait a minute, this union 

contract is destroying so many aspects of good policing. 

And if we don't address it, it will continue to fester and 

we will continue to have the type of trouble that we're 

having right now. So please, if you don't understand, 

just know how the chief tried to prevent this officer from 

being promoted. 

The board, I believe, did its job in saying, 

look, I don't agree. Let's postpone it. Let's look at it 

more. Let's do something more than just rubber stamp, 

which is what the union contract basically tells you to do 

and demands that you do and is in direct conflict with the 

city charter. I did not mean to cuss mother. 

But I thank you all and keep up the good work, 
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Chief, in trying to prevent bad officers from being 

promoted. Keep up the good work you commissioners who try 

to challenge promotions when you know they're wrong. 

But you know, right now, you can't do anything about it. 

Truth crushed to earth shall rise again. No lie can live 

forever. You shall reap what you sow. Amen. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

MS. GARNIER: Our next three speakers will be 

Ms. Michelle George, Eddie People and Mr. Jadante Smith. 

MS. GEORGE: Good afternoon, Honorable Board and 

to the Chair. I do have some of my National Action 

Network members here. Reverend Sharpton is our CEO and 

president of NAN. And we're going to discuss. 

My question is, are you all going to deal with 

the officer Zachary if he comes back on the board? We 

know that, to the police department, we know that Tracy 

Allen was shot six times, it's no way. And it was Malcolm 

X that said in May of 1962, the black woman is the most 

disrespected woman dealing with racism and sexism. He 

should not be allowed back on the board. That is 

something we hold with police accountability. 

Congratulations, of course, to Assistant Chief 

Hayes. But the thing is, that's a disrespect to black 

women. When I look at what happened to even just to veer 

off the United States Supreme Court gutting Section two of 
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the Voting Rights Act. And even though all three of the 

justices did a dissent, Alito attacks the black woman, 

Jackson, no say anything about the other women. So, we 

will as National Action Network, I call Craig Miller, and 

I told him he's hiding behind the desk, he need to come 

out. If you're going to bring this officer back, face us, 

especially as black women. So, we are against that. 

Also, and we do have our political director 

here, Sam Riddle, and the other members and we will be 

reporting now because when we just left New York, this is 

what Reverend Sharpton asked us to do. We have our 

families here, but this is what we're going to do. 

Also, dealing with the drag racing, I did send out a 

letter to Judge William McGonagle, the Honorable Judge, to 

make sure those sentences reflect the injuries that 

occurred in our community. 

Also, I reached out Chair Eva about the Kratom. 

It is known as gas station heroin. I reached out to the 

Chief of Police Chief in Sterling Heights. We had that 

discussion down at the, around the time of George Floyd. 

But he told me he put, I text him. He said, Michelle, I 

put an ordinance in against that Kratom that is in the 

community. So, I just wanted you all to know he's now the 

assistant manager of Sterling Heights. 

So, I kept my contact. That's my comment. 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · 

· · ·

· · · · 

· · ·

· · · · 

· ·

· · · · · · · · 

· ·

· · · 

· ·

· ·

· · · 

· ·

· ·

· · · · · · ·

· · · · 

· ·

· · · 

· ·

· · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · ·

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

MS. CAMILLE: Madam Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes, Commissioner. 

MS. CAMILLE: I just had a question, perhaps for 

the department, perhaps for Corporation Counsel. There's 

been bits and pieces of information in the media in 

regards to Tracy Allen, Zachary Melvin. Has the 

department prepared an official update for the community 

on where everything stands with that situation? Or is 

that coming soon? 

MR. MALLETT: Through the Chair. 

Commissioner Camille, we are still waiting on the 

prosecutor's decision. It is only until she actually 

decides, will actually the Detroit Police Department 

really have a full range and understanding of what the 

opportunities are. As this board well knows, a $25 

million lawsuit has already been filed against the city of 

Detroit and the Detroit Police Department. 

Her decision will be critical to the defense 

that we put forward. And so, we're all waiting. So, we 

don't have an official report for the board yet. 

It's incomplete. And we're waiting to see what the 

prosecutor does. 

MS. CAMILLE: Thank you, Corporation Counsel. 

Thank you, Madam Chair. 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · · · · · · 

· · · · 

· · ·

· · · · 

· · · · 

· ·

· ·

· ·

· ·

· ·

· ·

· · · · · · ·

· ·

· ·

· · · 

· · · 

· · · · · · ·

· ·

· ·

· · · 

· ·

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Any other comments? 

Okay. Hearing none. Next speaker, please. 

MR. PEOPLE: Good afternoon, Commissioners. 

THE BOARD: Good afternoon. 

MR. PEOPLE: My name's Eddie People, a member of 

the National Action Network. As we say so often, we come 

and we speak on our African American women being 

mistreated. And I see some of our African American women 

sitting at the table. Now, I just would like to ask, how 

many of you would fight so hard for an officer having shot 

one of your relatives, one of your children, maybe one of 

your sisters or your nieces, husbands, whatever relative. 

How many of you would have fought so hard to get a 

policeman back on the board, back on the office, back on 

the force or whatever? 

Can you honestly say he shot the relative that 

I've just spoken of and I will try my very best to get him 

or her back on the police force having shot this 

individual that I'm speaking of. Can you look at me and 

say, oh, yes, I would? Now tell me that you would. 

Now I will have each one of your names and our 

political director for National Action Network, he will 

give us each one of your names Saturday morning, at our 

meeting. And he will tell the group that Mr. so and so, 

Commissioner so and so and Commissioner so and so, they 
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all agree that they would have give all of their energy to 

get this policeman, a police lady, back on the force that 

tried to kill my wife, my husband, my daughter, whatever. 

God bless you. Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Commissioner Woods and then Commissioner Boman. 

MR. WOODS: Let it be absolutely clear that that 

will be untrue. This board has acted and within our 

powers and we voted to suspend the officer without pay, 

which was the powers that we had. And we -- that's not 

true either, you know. But the fact of the matter is, is 

that we have no other authority other than what we acted 

upon. So, this board has acted within its powers, through 

the Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner Boman and 

then Commissioner Morris and Commissioner Camille. 

MR. BOMAN: Yeah, I've attended every single 

meeting of this board since being elected to it. 

Sometimes I come in a little late, but I definitely get in 

here by the time the chief's report is going. And I can 

affirm that there has not been a vote to get said officer 

back on the force by this board. So, I attended many 

Saturday meetings myself with your political director. 

I know you, I know him, but that's not really the point. 

The point is simply that I want you to go back 
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there with accurate information. Now I haven't been there 

lately because I'm working quite close to that time. 

But the fact of the matter is no such vote has happened. 

And we'll just leave it there. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Commissioner Morris. 

MR. MORRIS: Yes, I would like to say that I 

agree with you 100 percent and that myself, I know for a 

fact, that myself, and Commissioner Camille, got together 

and met with someone in the department and we expressed 

that individually we would like to see that person 

terminated and fired from the police department. 

The victim who was shot, we both wore shirts with that 

victim's name on it stating that we stand with that 

victim. And if you look at my social media page and I can 

only speak for myself, as a commissioner, I'm not like a 

lot of elected officials. I don't go to the balls and to 

the dances and all of these events just to take pictures 

with other elected officials, flipping down my social 

media 

(Audio cut out.) 

-- that officer back in the street patrolling, she has 

expressed the same thing, you know. So, I'm not here to 

play the political game with people. I actually got 

elected to fight for the citizens of the city of Detroit. 
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And if you look at the media that even came at a price 

where I was fighting so hard and the powers that be tried 

to conspire on ways to get me off this board. But because 

the forces that are pushing me forward are stronger than 

the ones that's holding me back, I'm still standing and 

I'm still fighting for the people. And I will continue to 

call on the department to terminate that officer. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner Camille. 

MS. CAMILLE: Thank you, Madam Chair. 

So, through the Chair, as was stated, the board 

has taken one step that it can do, which was to put this 

officer on administrative leave without pay. And as 

Corporation Counsel has said, the ball right now is in the 

prosecutor's court. And so, I move that the board draft a 

memo to Madam Prosecutor reminding her of the critical 

role that she plays in holding police accountable in 

Detroit and that we implore her to make the decision that 

protects the residents. And so that's my motion is that 

we send -- that we draft a memo and send it to the 

prosecutor to not bring this officer back and to do what 

she can in her power to make sure that doesn't happen. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Does the commissioner want the 

staff to do it or a commissioner to do it? When you say 

we, that's sort of nebulous. 

MS. CAMILLE: I'm fine with staff starting a 
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draft for the commissioners to review. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Okay. So, the motion is that 

staff will draft a resolution directed to the prosecutor. 

MS. CAMILLE: For the board to approve before it 

goes out. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Right. 

MS. CAMILLE: Yes. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Okay. Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. 

Is it a resolution or a letter? 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: It can be either one. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. 

A motion has been made. 

Is there a second? 

MR. BOMAN: Second. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: It's been seconded by 

Commissioner Boman. 

MR. MORRIS: I would like to amend that. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: I'm sorry. 

MR. MORRIS: I would like to amend that motion 

for --

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Let her state it first and 

then opens it for discussion. Then you can propose an 

amendment. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. The motion has 
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been made to draft a letter to Wayne County Prosecutor. 

And the gist of it, if you want to mention it, is to 

encourage her to? 

MS. CAMILLE: To hold this officer accountable 

within her power. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: All right. And it has 

been seconded by Commissioner Boman. Is there any 

discussion? 

MR. MORRIS: Yes. I would like to amend that 

motion. I would like to direct Corporation Counsel to 

actually draft that up, coming from a legal perspective. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: So, the motion properly stated 

is to strike out staff and insert Corporation Counsel. 

MR. MORRIS: Yes. 

MS. CAMILLE: Second. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: It has been made by 

Commissioner Morris, seconded by Commissioner Camille. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: So, the motion before you is 

on the motion to amend. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Is there any 

discussion? 

MR. BOMAN: I'm interested in knowing the 

Corporation Counsel's opinion on him drafting the letter. 

MR. MALLETT: I'll be glad to. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. 
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Motion has been made to amend the motion to ask 

Corporation Counsel to draft a letter and he's happy to do 

it. So, all in favor indicate by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? 

The motion carries to amend. 

Now we're back to the motion as amended. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Now states that Corporation 

Counsel will draft the letter. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. So that the 

letter being drafted for Wayne County Prosecutor will be 

drafted by Corporation Counsel. Is there any discussion? 

MS. CAMILLE: Discussion, Madam Chair. I just 

want to reiterate for the record that the draft would come 

still to the board for final approval. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Right. And then it 

will come to the board for final approval. 

All in favor indicate by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? 

The motion carries. 

All right. Next speaker. 

MR. PEOPLE: Thank you very much ladies and 

gentlemen. 

MS. GARNIER: Our next speaker is Mr. Smith and 
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then followed by Keyshawn C (phonetic). And if there's 

anyone in the audience who wants to make a comment, just 

fill out a comment card. And then after Keyshawn, it'll 

be Mr. Cousins. 

MR. SMITH: So, I just want to say for the 

record, I do a lot of FOIAs. And so, Conrad Mallett, who 

sits there, is a Corporation Counsel, who should not be 

able to sit on this board because any lawsuit filed 

against the City of Detroit goes through his office. 

Like that's why he's able to be abreast of every single 

lawsuit leveraged against any department within the City 

of Detroit. He makes $179,000.00, I believe, to be exact. 

If not, I got the right amount in my email. I'll say it 

out there. You know how much you make. 

You shouldn't be on this board. There is enough 

money in the budget on this board to have an independent 

lawyer. Because when we talk about the law department, 

you're sitting right here. You should not be able to 

speak on this board, especially if you're offering jobs to 

people. 

Also, Officer Melvin Zachary, if he shot anybody 

on this board, any relative, you wouldn't want him back. 

No way he should have a second chance agreement. And we 

have a black sergeant. She also did violate laws and 

things like that. But she was forced into retirement. 

https://179,000.00
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And Melvin Zachary is still in the force. 

I love how you're staring at me, Lavish 

Williams. Keep the energy up. Keep the energy up, Chop 

Shop Williams. Keep it up. Also, we got Booty Bandit 

Perisher, who has violated my rights on several occasions 

at these meetings. She put me out of the meeting. 

Through the Chair --

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Let's not use any foul 

language against people on this board. 

MR. SMITH: Booty is not a foul language. 

That's not foul. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: It is in my opinion, so 

stop. 

MR. SMITH: Anyway, I'm going to speak past my 

time. You cut my time out. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: No, we're not going --

MR. SMITH: I'm going to keep speaking. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: No, you're not. 

MR. SMITH: So, retired detective Barbara Simon 

also, should be arrested because of her false convictions 

that she caused through the Wayne County Prosecutor's 

Office. She caused several people, at least five to ten 

people, to be in prison because of false testimony, 

because of her interrogation tactics. Also, to you, Chair 

Dewaelsche, I don't know what you do at SER, you seem to 
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need some training on this board. You come here week in 

and week out. 

You don't understand how to make motions. 

You don't understand how to take roll call votes. 

You don't understand when a roll call vote is to be had. 

I understand this board better than you do. 

I've only been here maybe a year or longer. 

You've been on the board three times, I believe. This is 

your third trip on the board. You don't understand how 

the board functions, how it works. Very sad to see that. 

Also, to Commissioner Ivey, I don't think we got 

a real problem. I don't think you're my enemy. You might 

not understand how to deal with criticism, whatever, but I 

don't look at you as an enemy. But we do have a 

commissioner up here who I do look at as an enemy, who got 

Willie Burton arrested at a meeting. Commissioner Carter, 

I'm very disappointed in how you sit up and you don't do 

anything. You just sit there. We'll be talking about you 

in the future. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Your time is up. 

Thank you. 

Next speaker, please. 

MR. C: Hi, how are you doing? 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Hi. 

MR. C: Everybody okay? Okay. I'm here today 
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because I'm here to speak on behalf of my mother, Latoya 

Chavies. She was denied her promotion for detective. 

I feel as if that you guys made a judgment based off what 

the paperwork said, and you guys don't have the actual 

true facts from someone that was there. 

So, I came down here, I flew all the way from 

Arizona here just for this specific moment, just to, you 

know, inform you guys of what happened, because a lot of 

you don't have what happened. You know what I mean? 

You guys have what's written down on paper and not the 

actual actions that led there. First, I just want to say 

that the complaint of her punching her daughter was a lie. 

I was right there when my sister decided to lie and call 

her dad and tell her dad that she wanted to come with her. 

And the first thing he said is, why? And she said that 

she punched her. 

She wasn't even there that day. She was at work 

completing a shift. I was never interviewed by Child 

Protective Service at that time, because I'm the one who 

had the whole story, since I was there. They never 

interviewed me. They went straight to her daughter, got 

the story from her daughter, and ran with it. 

The CPS agent involved with it was actually a 

close friend of our family who should never have been on 

the case in the first place as a conflict of interest. 
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So, ladies and gentlemen, I'm telling you, my mom has gave 

her time, energy, and love into this city. Now, although 

there have been some allegations that have came out, but 

what do police say? Some police officers have bad days, 

right? Right. Okay. 

So, what I'm saying is that I'm going to ask you 

guys to look deeply into this, because she does deserve 

this. You guys haven't been there when you when you guys' 

parents have to leave out 6:00 in the afternoon, going to 

6:00 in the morning because the powers that be can't 

figure out how they want to staff the police and want to 

make everyone work mandatory overtimes. You guys remember 

that? Some of y'all remember that? 6:00 to 6:00? 

I'm the only person that remember that? 

Okay. Cool. All right. So that's what I'm 

saying. I'm just asking that the Chief, Chief Bettison, 

obviously, the commissioners review it, and make a right 

decision, because she is a good person. 

And besides the allegations on the paper, 

allegations don't mean nothing. I have her polygraph 

right here, if that would interest you guys in seeing it. 

And she passed. A polygraph doesn't lie. She's not 

trained to beat a polygraph. So, I'm asking, would you 

guys at least please look at it? 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you for your 
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time. Time is up. Okay. Commissioner Woods. 

MR. WOODS: Through the Chair. Young man, thank 

you for sharing. And I respect you and I respect you 

standing up for your mom. And rest assured that we're 

going to look into everything, you know. And we have 

vetted all the way out and to see and make the proper 

assessments and speaking through the Chair. But I really 

want to applaud you for standing up for your mom. 

MR. C: Thank you. 

MR. WOODS: And I'm praying for you and praying 

for your family. 

MR. C: Thank you. I just feel like that, you 

know, obviously, with Commissioner Morris made a couple of 

statements, though, I feel as if Commissioner Morris, 

you've never been a police officer. So, you've been in a 

capacity, and you're not even allowed to be in that 

capacity. So, what I'm saying is you -- he hasn't been in 

that profession, so he wouldn't understand the decisions 

that have to be split. You understand what I'm saying? 

He doesn't understand those. 

He's a civilian appointed -- he's in a civilian 

appointed position. So, he doesn't understand what it is 

when you have a civilian that can lie or somebody that can 

go make a complaint and say you punched him in the face. 

And now here we are. You understand what I'm saying? 
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CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner Boman and 

then Commissioner Morris. Commissioner Camille. 

MR. BOMAN: Yeah, I'm just going to say and 

encourage you and anyone else who has information that 

might be relevant to us to email the board. I think you 

said you wanted the whole board to see it. 

MR. C: Yeah, I have the polygraph right here. 

MR. BOMAN: You should forward that email. 

I forget -- is it just the Detroit Board of 

Police Commissioners? What is the general email address? 

So, it goes to everybody. 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I'm sorry, I don't mean 

to interrupt, but she has rights. And I don't think that 

she understands what he's doing here. And I don't think 

that that's appropriate. I want to have a discussion with 

him outside before we move forward with anything like 

that. 

MR. BOMAN: If he decides he wishes to, which 

email address was that? 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: They're on the flyers 

on the back table so she can also get that. 

Commissioner Morris. 

MR. MORRIS: Also, as a response to what he 

said, the misconduct in which she was sustained in was 

investigated by people who are police officers, who know 
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the experience and who have been on the force, which is 

internal affairs, as well as representatives of the 

department who have been on the force for multiple years, 

who was vehemently against her promotion to the point that 

she had to go all the way to the Court of Appeals. Also, 

the things he said, it carried on 30 seconds after his 

time was up. I'm directing the staff, if Mr. Smith comes 

up and his time is up and you cut him off because his time 

is up, you have to do that for everybody. When the time 

is up, you let them know that the time is up because you 

let him carry on 30 seconds after. I sat here and counted 

it. Thank you. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: With respect, Madam Chair, 

that's the job of the chair. That's not the job of staff. 

Staff don't have that authority. The chair would have to 

be the person who would have to do that. 

MR. MORRIS: All right. Well, reroute it the 

other way. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. 

Commissioner Camille. 

MS. CAMILLE: Oh, Madam Chair, I yield my time. 

I yield my comment. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. 

Any other comments? 

Go ahead, sir. 
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MR. COUSIN: Hello, everyone. My name is 

Charles Cousin. I come up here with gravity and extreme 

humility. As a victim of police brutality, I moved to the 

city of Detroit seeking refuge. 

And I know I generally come up here to complain 

about situations, but I just want to thank each and every 

one of you guys. I think you're doing an amazing job. 

Walk a Mile Wednesdays has been really therapeutic to 

someone like me who is not necessarily a stereotypical 

ally of the police. I love seeing all you guys there. 

I want to take a second to talk about something 

that's happening on the outskirts of Detroit, just in case 

anybody out there is listening, including the feds. 

They are kidnapping black men, throwing them in prison, 

and charging them with disorderly conduct. And cities 

like Warren and the city of Madison Heights, they need to 

be investigated because they're literally trying to roll 

us back to slavery. And I know that this comment might 

not necessarily be directed, per se, to this board, but I 

just felt the urge to put it on the record, that there is 

something seriously wrong going on, on the outskirts of 

the city of Detroit, and it affects our city. So that's 

all I have to say. Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you, sir. 

Any comments, questions? 
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Next speaker, please. 

MS. UNDERWOOD: Thank you, Madam Chair. 

We're going to go into Zoom. Our first speaker is Nene's 

Friend. Our next speaker will be Legendary Detroiter. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Next speaker, please. 

MS. UNDERWOOD: Can you unmute? 

We will go to the next speaker. 

Legendary Detroiter. 

MR. DETROITER: Yeah. Yeah. I want to commend 

the Chief of the Detroit Police Department, Todd Bettison, 

for his appointment as the first assistant chief, Mr. 

Franklin Hayes. I have my own reasons. 

I said something about the man that was untrue. 

He accepted my apology with humility and grace. So, I 

wanted to put that out there in front of everybody in the 

whole city of Detroit. The top two at the DPD, I rock 

with them. 

Now, Eva Dewaelsche, Darryl Woods, and Crafty 

Conrad, it's turn-up time in the city of Detroit. 

Mary Elaine Beckman's ballot is over at the Detroit 

Department of Elections. Supposedly, she is an overseas 

citizen voting from Germany. Supposedly, she didn't get a 

ballot. It was flagged as undeliverable by the United 

States Postal Service and returned back to the Detroit 

Department of Elections. 
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And now I want to switch it straight to what 

Nene asked me for, requested, and deserves. Her mama, 

Kenesha Coleman, DPD case number 20-11112, did not shoot 

herself. My word. I investigated it, found out what 

happened, what took place, informed the correct people, 

and now election fraud and murder cover-ups is on the 

floor for me and Detroit City, and I am who I am. 

You hear that, Darryl Conrad? 

MS. GARNIER: Our next two speakers will be 

former Commissioner William Davis and Juana. 

MR. DAVIS: Hello, can I be heard? 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes, you may. 

MR. DAVIS: Okay. I'd like to start off by 

saying I think that was some excellent -- well, I'd like 

to give congratulations to all the people that's being 

promoted, and also, especially with the executive staff 

appointments, and a special shout-out to, what was 

Sergeant Jackson over at the 2nd Precinct, neighborhood 

police officer who are now a lieutenant, which I think is 

well-deserved, and hopefully before I lonely be a captain. 

I'd also like to say that I'm in total agreement with my 

NAN brothers and sisters in what they were saying. That's 

all I have to say. Y'all have a good day. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Next speaker. 
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MS. JUANA: Through the Chair, Madam President, 

did all of the officers leave? 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes, pretty much, the 

ones that were promoted. 

MS. JUANA: Yeah, I wanted to say 

congratulations. It was a good thing to hear something 

from the 2nd Precinct. So, I don't even want to say 

anything more. Oh, I do, I do. I'm sorry. 

I agree with Commissioner Morris. I forget the 

young gentleman's name. He comes every week. He was put 

out, and always getting put out, or, you know, his time 

took and spoken over, just because maybe some of you all 

don't like what he's saying, but it's not right for the 

officer's son to overspeak his time, and then just 

overspeak his time, and nothing was said. That wasn't 

fair at all, and that will be my time. Thank y'all, and 

very productive meeting. Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Next speaker. 

MS. UNDERWOOD: Our next two speakers will be 

Ms. Davis, and then Tanya Jackson, and that will be the 

last speaker. 

MS. DAVIS: Hello. Can you hear me? 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes, we can. 

MS. DAVIS: Hi, this is Benita Davis, and I just 
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want to include, we were talking about last week's 

resolutions, and I brought up House Bill Resolution 192, 

73rd Congress, June 5th. That's public law, if you want 

to resolve any issues. Secondly, there should be no 

promotions going on inside of the police department, where 

there's no judicial branch under the form of government 

they stand and operate on. So, how is it that you're 

promoting police men and women, and there's no judicial 

branch? Third of all, you can't be biased. You cannot be 

prejudiced when it comes to speaking. 

Yes, I understand a young man appearing as a 

police officer, but at the same time, we all have the same 

rights. So, if you're going to enforce anything, you got 

to put that House Bill Resolution, because that will help 

resolve all matters. We're dealing with a democracy. 

There's no judicial branch, so there's absolutely no 

justice. 

And the young man is correct. These police 

officers are out here working with the prosecutors, 

kidnapping men and women, and incarcerating them under 

false charges. So, as long as there's unlawful 

detainment, excessive bail, a lack of due process, no one 

needs to be promoted. Because otherwise, what are you 

promoting? Celebrating the incarceration of innocent men 

and women who are not given a fair trial, a judicial 
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trial. 

So, yeah, that's my two minutes. I'll be back 

next week with more facts, because everybody at this point 

is out of order, starting with Eva, because Eva doesn't 

even know the order at the table. She has to be 

redirected every time she's out of order. So, imagine if 

she's out of order, just imagine how severely these police 

men and women are out of order. So, that's my two minutes 

before I'm hung up on and disrespected like the rest of 

the people. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Next speaker. 

MS. UNDERWOOD: Our last speaker will be Tanya 

Jackson. 

MS. JACKSON: Good afternoon. My name is Tanya 

Jackson. So, I am a victim of retaliation from a Detroit 

police officer. I'm finally able to speak on the matter 

because my case is over. I'm sure everybody at the board 

know and aware of the things he did to me. 

I have a personal protection order out on 

Mr. Dawson. I still have been getting harassed. This man 

had posted personal information about me on social media. 

He suspended, but still getting paid. How is that even 

possible? Y'all paying him for being out with a personal 

protection order. How is that even possible? 
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This man threatened to shoot me in my head. 

He's a trained officer, right? How do y'all let that 

slide? How is he being paid and being rewarded for doing 

something bad, when he can't even work the field because 

he had a restraining order out on him? 

He had tried over four times to get this 

restraining order terminated. The judge denied it. 

He filed again. So, this will be the fifth time. I feel 

like it's harassment at this point. Who's paying for his 

lawyer to do this? I'm a victim, not him. 

I spoke with the chief. I spoke with Jidante 

and nobody's standing up because he's a police officer. 

How is he able to make false allegations against me? 

How is he even still getting paid? How could you, as a 

sworn officer, you're supposed to protect, right? 

Ain't that his job? 

Rather, it was a friendship, a dating 

relationship. We was dating. How is he allowed to say he 

should have shot me in my head and did more physical 

damage, but he's playing the victim? He's posting me on 

social media. He's tarnishing my family, but you the 

victim. How is he even getting paid? He should not be 

getting paid. 

And the PPO is still activated. It's still 

active. How is he even able to keep filing and they keep 
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denying it because on the record, I submitted transcripts 

of him admitting to doing these --

MS. UNDERWOOD: Madam Chair, that's your last 

speaker. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner Boman. 

MR. BOMAN: Yeah, I wanted to ask if that person 

had made a complaint with OCI. 

MR. WARFIELD: To my knowledge, I'm not sure. 

I can check on it and see, though. But even if they did 

make a complaint, that would be forwarded over to IA. 

But I can check to see if she made a complaint because of 

the nature of what had happened. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Madam Secretary. 

MS. GARNIER: Madam Chair, if I may, this was a 

Matter, that maybe, Commissioner Watts remembers that we 

were, well, there was a call. Mr. Smith, I believe, was 

the last one that raised the issue before the board. 

But this officer, there is a matter, as I understand it, 

having talked to, don't let me get the title wrong, 

McGinnis, with Internal Affairs. And I believe Chief --

someone did. I can't recall all right now, but it has 

been followed up, Madam Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. 

Commissioner Watts, go ahead. 

MS. WATTS: Yes, I want to say this has, this 
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came up doing one of the first policy committee meetings. 

And so there was a after dialogue after that. And so, we 

did, I did direct and ask the board secretary to follow up 

and see what was going on with this particular case. And 

I thought it was going to go over to you, Chief Warfield, 

but we're still waiting on any update related to that. 

And this has probably been over a month or two ago. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. 

CIO Warfield. 

MR. WARFIELD: Through the Chair, I'll certainly 

follow up to see if our office did take the complaint. 

If so, with what the status is, and you will have that 

this week. I'm sorry, not this week, early next week. 

Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Commissioner Camille. 

MS. CAMILLE: Thank you, Madam Chair. 

Question for Corporation Counsel. 

I don't -- I know we've heard regarding this issue a few 

times. But the young lady mentioned that she can speak 

now because her case is over. Do you know if she's 

referring to a lawsuit case that has concluded? Or some 

other type of cases? 

MR. MALLETT: I have, through the Chair, 

Commissioner Camille, I am 99.9 percent positive she has 
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not filed a case against this officer that includes the 

City of Detroit. Well, so if there is a and I don't know 

if she has filed anything with the Wayne County 

Prosecutor. She did indicate that she has a personal 

protection order. That may be the case that she's 

referring to. It result -- according to the young lady on 

the phone, the judge did grant her personal protection 

order. That may be the case she's referring to. 

There's no civil case, Commissioner Camille. 

MS. CAMILLE: Thank you. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: The Secretary, did you 

want to speak again? Madam Secretary? 

MS. GARNIER: Madam Chair, through the Chair. 

I will be willing to reach out to Internal 

Affairs because McGinnis and I spoke about this and the 

person assigned to that matter with this officer. 

The last time we reported, the parties, the caller and the 

officer, there was a matter in court regarding the PPO. 

And it was the 20th of last month. So that may be what 

she's referring to. But I will follow up, if you desire 

that I do, with McGinnis to understand the status. 

Because the last I spoke with McGinnis, they had reached 

out to her and she had not responded. So, I will follow 

up. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Yes, I know. 
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MS. WATTS: Definitely, if I could get an 

update, because I had requested that a month or two. 

So, I'd be willing to update. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: CIO Warfield, did you 

want to say something about --

MR. WARFIELD: Yes, ma'am. Through the Chair, 

staff did contact me and say that BPC number 260425 was 

transferred over to the Internal Affairs Department from 

our office. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

MR. HAYES: Madam Chair. My first official act. 

Through the Chair, I have Deputy Chief Michael 

Parrish here to speak more as to where we are and give an 

overview of the circumstances and also a pathway to 

resolution. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Sounds good. 

Thank you. 

MR. PARRISH: Through the Chair. To the rest of 

the board. So, I confirmed with Internal Affairs, that 

case was closed for without misconduct, except for the 

fact that a PPO has been issued and sustained. The board 

may remember that DPD recently submitted a policy 

directive specific to PPOs against members that will allow 

us to suspend based on the existence of the PPO by itself. 

So that matter is over at disciplinary administration, and 
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we will take the appropriate measures to have the members 

suspended without pay in accordance with that system. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. Does that answer 

your question you had which case it was now? I think it's 

Internal Affairs. Go ahead, Commissioner Woods. 

MR. WOODS: Having said that, I would caution us 

to, you know, have no further comment on anything until 

things are ripe, you know, because we may have to go into 

a closed-door session on this and we have to have the 

appearance of, we can't have the appearance of bias, you 

know, so we have to listen to both sides. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Any other comments or 

questions? All right. 

Hearing none. Thank you. 

And that was our last speaker. 

Yes. Okay. Thank you. 

At this time, we have the report from the board 

secretary. 

MS. GARNIER: Madam Chair, through the Chair, 

tab 6, if the board will kindly note that the reports that 

are listed are under tab 6, together with note 6I is a 

communication that was received from that particular 

organization and the announcement of upcoming meetings. 

Our next meeting is Thursday, May 14th. Next week, 6:30 

p.m., we will, the board will be in the 8th Precinct at 
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Wayne County Community College District Northwest Lewis 

Auditorium and that's on West Outer Drive. The June 

committee meeting will be Thursday, June 11th at the 6:30 

p.m. hour in the 7th Precinct and it will be at the Martin 

Luther King Jr. High School at 3200 East Lafayette in 

Detroit. The next committee meetings are as follows. The 

citizen complaints meeting will be Tuesday, May 12th, at 

3:00 p.m. here at Detroit Public Safety Headquarters and 

on next Thursday, May 14th, at 2:00 p.m., the ad hoc 

committee for the review of bylaws and standard operating 

procedures and those are the items under tab 6 for today, 

Madam Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

Commissioner Woods. 

Do you have any questions? 

MR. WOODS: Yes. It's my understanding that the 

position for the administrative assistant's is posted, is 

that it's posted now. 

MS. GARNIER: The investigator --

MR. WOODS: Yes, for investigators. 

Thank you, I'm sorry. Yeah, you're right. 

Through the Chair. 

MS. GARNIER: The positions are posted. 

There was an email that was sent out, the matter as the 

board may or may not remember the requisitions go through 
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finance. They were approved and immediately upon that as 

the chair of the personnel and training knew that we were 

ready to together with the chief, the position 

descriptions were over and they were posted. I believe, 

Chief, on Tuesday. 

MR. WOODS: Yesterday. And so, if we can have a 

staff member run up there or have them print it out right 

quick for all commissioners, so that they can have copies 

of the posting and spread it among their contacts. 

I would deeply appreciate that, through the Chair. 

MS. GARNIER: Our apologies, sir. 

MR. WOODS: Oh, not a problem. 

MS. GARNIER: I didn't mean to cut you off. 

But to the other matter, during promotions, I apologize. 

We -- it was on to have copies. So yes, we'll ask for 

them immediately. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Thank you. 

MR. WOODS: Thank you. And the, excuse me, 

through the Chair. I'm sorry. The posting is for two 

weeks. And so, if people listening, share it among your 

contacts, these are three investigative positions for OCI. 

Thank you very kindly. 

MS. GARNIER: And do remember, Vice Chair, that 

the one is for incumbents only but he's going to bring 

down both postings. 
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MR. WOODS: Right, right. Yes, it's three --

would be a that that is separate. Yep. Yep. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: All right. Thank you. 

Did you want to say something CI? 

Okay. Any other comments? 

All right. Hearing none. 

Is there any unfinished business to come before 

this board? And under news business, we have a closed 

session pursuant to section 8A of the Open Meetings Act 

MCL 15.268(h) to receive legal advice from Corporation 

Counsel regarding material exempt from discussion by state 

or federal statute. Is there a motion to go into closed 

session? 

MS. CAMILLE: So moved. 

MS. IVEY: Support. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: I'm sorry who made it? 

Oh, Commissioner Camille and supported by 

Commissioner Ivey. All in favor -- any discussion? 

All in favor indicate by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? 

The motion carries. 

We will recess for two minutes. 

(At 5:40 p.m., off the record) 

(At 6:11 p.m., back on the record) 
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CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Returning to open 

session and could we have the roll call please? 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Dewaelsche. 

MS. DEWAELSCHE: Present. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Boman. 

MR. BOMAN: Present. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Camille. 

MS. CAMILLE: Present. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Carter. 

MS. CARTER: Here. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Ivey. 

MS. IVEY: Present. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Jones. 

MR. JONES: Present. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Morris. 

MR. MORRIS: Present. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Watts. 

MS. WATTS: Here. 

MS. GARNIER: Commissioner Williams. 

MS. WILLIAMS: Present. 

MS. GARNIER: Nine present, Madam Chair. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. Thank you. 

Under new business, we have another item. 

It'll be brought by Commissioner Watts. 

MS. WATTS: Yes. Thank you, Madam Chair. 
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I like to make a motion under new business. 

I move that any BOPC committee action requiring action by 

the full board be given one week notice to review the 

action before vote by the full board. 

MR. MORRIS: Support. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. It's been moved 

by Commissioner Watts, supported by Commissioner Morris, 

that we have one week notice before any action is 

considered by the committee's recommendation --

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Is this a standing rule that 

the commissioner is moving to adopt? 

MS. WATTS: Yes. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Okay. To amend the standing 

rules without notice requires two-thirds. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. Two-thirds vote. 

Let me get the motion first. 

Now, is there any discussion? 

Go ahead. 

MR. BOMAN: I'm just wondering is this how -- if 

this is any different than I said, I thought there was a 

motion I made last week to the effect that when something 

comes out of a committee that the board get at least one 

week view the proposal coming out of the committee. 

Is that --

MS. WATTS: Chair. I wasn't here. I believe 
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that was for policy committee. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. Madam Secretary. 

Do you have a comment? 

MS. GARNIER: Madam Chair, through the Chair. 

The motion that passed was Commissioner Boman motion, any 

future items to be voted on coming out of policy that the 

content be emailed to all of the commissioners a full week 

ahead of the meeting where it is to be voted at. 

The motion passed and that was April 23rd, Madam Chair. 

MR. JONES: Okay. But that was just one of --

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Motion is saying all 

committees. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: All committees. 

MR. BOMAN: So otherwise, would the effect be 

the same but it would now cover more committees. 

MS. WATTS: Correct. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Would cover all 

committees. All right. Any other discussion? 

MS. CAMILLE: Motion, Madam Chair. 

Thank you Commissioner Watts for raising this. 

I'm in full support of this motion. I just have a point 

of information for the parliamentarian. So, when we are 

voting to create a standing rule, does that go into the 

bylaws or does it stand alone somewhere? 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: The Board of Police 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

· · ·

· · ·

· · ·

· · ·

· · ·

· · ·

· · · · 

· · ·

· · · · · · · ·

· ·

· · · 

· ·

· · · 

· · · 

· · · 

· ·

· ·

· ·

· · · · · · ·

· ·

· ·

· ·

· ·

· ·

· ·

Commissioners already has a number of standing rules. 

So, the issue that you captured out of my brain is, it is 

important now for staff to add this to those rules that 

are is it -- so you have a number of rules about the 

public being polite and not making slanderous statements. 

You have a rule about commissioners waiting until they're 

called upon before speaking. Those rules are at the back 

of the Board of Police Commissioners bylaws. 

So, what we need is to have the updated, this 

rule, if it's adopted, and looks like it will be added to 

those rules. Other than that, it's going to land in the 

atmosphere somewhere and six months from now, nobody will 

remember it. So, when I look at your bylaws, attached to 

the bylaws are your standing rules. You're amending those 

rules by adding this. In fact, what you're really doing 

is amending the motion that was adopted last week to 

really sort of strike out policy and insert all 

committees. 

Now you can do that, it's perfectly legal and 

the same rules apply without notice, you need two-thirds. 

But what is important is that this rule now then is 

memorialized with the rest of those standing rules so that 

future commissioners will know that this rule exists. 

And what I would say to you, what I would advise you, 

Commissioner Camille, is that when we are doing the bylaws 
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and the article on committees, which does not yet exist, 

is that this would then be put in the bylaws. I think 

it's stronger than the standing rules. 

Now, the only problem with putting it in the 

bylaws is that if you ever want to change it, you can't do 

that in one meeting. Because you're going to require 

advance notice. So, you need to think about, is there a 

situation under which the Board of Police commissioners 

may want less than a week to consider something. 

MR. WOODS: Through the Chair. I think it could 

be an impediment in some ways. When you look at, you 

know, job postings and all of that type of stuff, you 

know, I don't think it should be a blanket rule for 

everything, you know, because if you get stuck in that 

position, I suppose that we could make a motion to make an 

exception to the rule, you know, so if you know that be 

the case. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: What the parliamentarian would 

advise under those circumstances. If you think there's a 

situation that will arise where you may want to have the 

flexibility to have less than a week, then the motion 

would need to say unless there is a vote by two-thirds of 

the board. So, you want what I, parliamentarians call, 

get out of jail free card. So, you would, the motion then 

would be amended to say unless there is a vote of the 
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board by two-thirds to allow less than a week's notice. 

MR. WOODS: Yeah, so I'll make a motion to 

amend. 

MS. WATTS: I would go by that, as long as it 

applies to all committee. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Yes, what you would do is the 

amendment in this case really would be added to the end of 

the original motion. So, we would still have the original 

motion. The amendment would be unless the board, by two-

thirds vote, agrees to have less than one week's notice 

for a specific report, language along that line, that 

amendment would give you the flexibility to decide in a 

particular situation to have less than one week's notice 

and the boards by two-thirds vote could then do it. 

But then we would go back to the motion as amended which 

essentially is amending last week's motion to strike out 

policy and insert all committees. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. So, there's a 

an amendment to the motion then? 

MR. WOODS: Yes, I'll make a motion to amend the 

motion and that Commissioner Watts made and include in 

there that if a two-third majority --

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Vote by the board -- to the 

notice of one week. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: All right. 
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Is there a second? 

Go ahead. 

Wait. 

MS. WATTS: I support it. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: You're supporting? 

Okay. The amendment to the motion was made by 

Commissioner Woods, supported by Commissioner Watts. 

Is there a discussion on the amendment? Okay. 

Hearing none. All in favor indicate by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? 

Okay. It's unanimous. 

Now we're going to the original motion as 

amended. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Thank you. 

MR. WOODS: So moved. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: Well, you don't need to move 

it. 

MR. WOODS: I don't need to move it. Okay. 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: The motion is already pending. 

It should have been amended now to have this get out of 

jail free card. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: So is there any further 

discussion? 

MR. BOMAN: I have a question. 
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CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Go ahead. 

MR. BOMAN: I wish to direct it, I think, to the 

Parliamentary. If the language says two-thirds of the 

board, does it mean two-thirds of the seated members or 

two-thirds of the members present? 

PARLIAMENTARIAN: The Parliamentarian did not 

say two-thirds of the board. The Parliamentarian said 

two-thirds vote. If you use the language two-thirds vote, 

then that's two-thirds of those voting, not two-thirds of 

the board. And as a Parliamentarian, we almost always 

advise against the language two-thirds of the board, 

because if two-thirds of the board is not present, you 

can't adopt anything that requires two-thirds motion. 

So that's not very smart. So, the language is two-thirds 

vote. The board can decrease the notice as it wishes. 

Now you have the ability, if some situation 

comes up, like a job posting, to do less than one week, 

and you have that flexibility. But it would always be 

two-thirds vote. Now having said that, the Open Meetings 

Act only allows elected boards to abstain under very 

narrow specific issues. So almost always, it's going to 

be two-thirds of everyone present. But the language is 

two-thirds vote. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Okay. Any further 

discussion? Hearing none. All those in favor of the 
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motion as amended indicate by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE: Opposed? 

Motion carries unanimously. 

Motion to adjourn. 

Is there a second? 

Okay. All in favor indicate by saying aye. 

THE BOARD: Aye. 

(At 6:22 p.m., meeting adjourned) 
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